
FRANKLIN TOWN COUNCIL
Agenda & Meeting Packet

May 3, 2023

Meeting will be held at the Municipal Building
2nd floor, Council Chambers

355 East Central Street
7:00 PM

A NOTE TO RESIDENTS: All citizens are welcome to attend public board and committee meetings in person.
Meetings are also live-streamed by Franklin TV and shown on Comcast Channel 11 and Verizon Channel 29.

In an effort to maximize citizen engagement opportunities, citizens will be able to continue to participate remotely via
phone OR Zoom.

Link to access meeting via Zoom for the May 3, 2023 Town Council meeting:
● Zoom Link HERE -- Then click “Open Zoom”.
● Or copy and paste this URL into your browser: https://us02web.zoom.us/j/82937690021
● Call-In Phone Number: Call 1-929-205-6099 and enter Meeting ID # 829 3769 0021 --Then press #

1. ANNOUNCEMENTS FROM THE CHAIR
a. This meeting is being recorded by Franklin TV and shown on Comcast channel 11 and Verizon

Channel 29. This meeting may be recorded by others.
b. Chair to identify members participating remotely.

2. CITIZEN COMMENTS
a. Citizens are welcome to express their views for up to three minutes on a matter that is not on

the agenda. The Council will not engage in a dialogue or comment on a matter raised during
Citizen Comments. The Town Council will give remarks appropriate consideration and may ask
the Town Administrator to review the matter.

3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES - None Scheduled.
4. PROCLAMATIONS / RECOGNITIONS - None Scheduled.
5. APPOINTMENTS - None Scheduled.
6. PUBLIC HEARINGS - 7:00 PM

a. New Section 12 Restaurant Common Victualer All Alcohol License and Approval of Katrina
Psikarakis as the Manager - Here Come Two Greeks, LLC d/b/a Sierra’s Brick Oven Pizza &
Pub, Located at 370 King Street

i. See 7: License Transactions (a) below
7. LICENSE TRANSACTIONS

a. New Section 12 Restaurant Common Victualer All Alcohol License and Approval of Katrina
Psikarakis as the Manager - Here Come Two Greeks, LLC d/b/a Sierra’s Brick Oven Pizza &
Pub, Located at 370 King Street

https://www.franklinma.gov/home/pages/live-meetings-stream
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/82937690021
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/82937690021
https://www.franklinma.gov/sites/g/files/vyhlif6896/f/uploads/6a._sierras_new_license_app.pdf
https://www.franklinma.gov/sites/g/files/vyhlif6896/f/uploads/6a._sierras_new_license_app.pdf
https://www.franklinma.gov/sites/g/files/vyhlif6896/f/uploads/6a._sierras_new_license_app.pdf
https://www.franklinma.gov/sites/g/files/vyhlif6896/f/uploads/7a.license_transaction_-_sierras.pdf
https://www.franklinma.gov/sites/g/files/vyhlif6896/f/uploads/7a.license_transaction_-_sierras.pdf
https://www.franklinma.gov/sites/g/files/vyhlif6896/f/uploads/7a.license_transaction_-_sierras.pdf


b. License Modification - Change of Manager: Rare Hospitality International, Inc. d/b/a Longhorn
Steakhouse; Located at 250 Franklin Village Drive, Franklin, MA 02038

c. License Modification - Change of Officers/Directors/LLC Managers: 99 Restaurants of Boston,
LLC d/b/a 99 Restaurant, Located at 847 West Central Street

8. PRESENTATIONS / DISCUSSION
a. Presentation: FY22 Financial Audit - Scott McIntire, Partner, Marcum LLP
b. Presentation: Charles River Pollution Control District - Elizabeth Taglieri, Executive Director

Charles River Pollution Control District
i. Legislation For Action 9 (a)

c. An Introduction to PFAS Regulations - DPW Director Brutus Cantoreggi and Water & Sewer
Superintendent Doug Martin

9. LEGISLATION FOR ACTION
a. Bylaw Amendment 23-897: Sewer Rate Increase - First Reading

(Motion to Move Bylaw Amendment 23-897 to a Second Reading - Majority Vote)
b. Resolution 23-30: Authorizing the Borrowing of Money to Pay Costs Associated with the

Franklin Sewer System Asset Management Plan (CWSRF 12541)
(Motion to Approve Resolution 23-30 - ⅔ Majority Vote)

c. Resolution 23-31: Authority For Town Administrator to File Clean Water State Revolving Fund
Loan Application (Motion to Approve Resolution 23-31 - ⅔ Majority Vote)

d. Zoning Bylaw Amendment 23-889: A Zoning Bylaw to Amend the Franklin Town Code at
Chapter 185, Attachment 7., Part VI, Use Regulation Schedule: Residential Uses - Second
Reading (Motion to Approve Bylaw Amendment 23-889 - Majority Roll Call Vote)

e. Zoning Bylaw Amendment 23-890: A Zoning Bylaw to Amend the Franklin Town Code at
Chapter 185, Section 51 - Second Reading
(Motion to Approve Bylaw Amendment 23-890 - Majority Roll Call Vote)

f. Resolution 23-32: Gift Acceptance - Town of Franklin for Red Brick School House (Donation of
“Established” Sign) (Motion to Approve Resolution 23-32 - Majority Vote)

g. Resolution 23-29: FY23 Capital Round 2
(Motion to Approve Resolution 23-29 - Majority Vote)

10. TOWN ADMINISTRATOR’S REPORT
11. SUBCOMMITTEE & AD HOC COMMITTEE REPORTS

a. Capital Budget Subcommittee
b. Economic Development Subcommittee
c. Budget Subcommittee
d. GATRA Advisory Board

12. FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS
13. COUNCIL COMMENTS
14. EXECUTIVE SESSION - None Scheduled.
15. ADJOURN

Note: Two-Thirds Vote: requires 6 votes
Majority Vote: requires majority of members present and voting

https://www.franklinma.gov/sites/g/files/vyhlif6896/f/uploads/7b_license_transaction_-_longhorn.pdf
https://www.franklinma.gov/sites/g/files/vyhlif6896/f/uploads/7b_license_transaction_-_longhorn.pdf
https://www.franklinma.gov/sites/g/files/vyhlif6896/f/uploads/7c._99_lic_trans.pdf
https://www.franklinma.gov/sites/g/files/vyhlif6896/f/uploads/7c._99_lic_trans.pdf
https://www.franklinma.gov/sites/g/files/vyhlif6896/f/uploads/8a._presentation_-_audit.pdf
https://www.franklinma.gov/sites/g/files/vyhlif6896/f/uploads/8b._presentation_-_charles_river_pollution_control_district.pdf
https://www.franklinma.gov/sites/g/files/vyhlif6896/f/uploads/8b._presentation_-_charles_river_pollution_control_district.pdf
https://www.franklinma.gov/sites/g/files/vyhlif6896/f/uploads/8c._memo_-_discussion_introduction_to_pfas_in_franklin.pdf
https://www.franklinma.gov/sites/g/files/vyhlif6896/f/uploads/8c._memo_-_discussion_introduction_to_pfas_in_franklin.pdf
https://www.franklinma.gov/sites/g/files/vyhlif6896/f/uploads/9a._23-897_-_sewer_rate_increase.pdf
https://www.franklinma.gov/sites/g/files/vyhlif6896/f/uploads/23-30_250k_sewer_0.pdf
https://www.franklinma.gov/sites/g/files/vyhlif6896/f/uploads/23-30_250k_sewer_0.pdf
https://www.franklinma.gov/sites/g/files/vyhlif6896/f/uploads/9c._23-31.pdf
https://www.franklinma.gov/sites/g/files/vyhlif6896/f/uploads/9c._23-31.pdf
https://www.franklinma.gov/sites/g/files/vyhlif6896/f/uploads/9d._23-889.pdf
https://www.franklinma.gov/sites/g/files/vyhlif6896/f/uploads/9d._23-889.pdf
https://www.franklinma.gov/sites/g/files/vyhlif6896/f/uploads/9d._23-889.pdf
https://www.franklinma.gov/sites/g/files/vyhlif6896/f/uploads/9e._23-890.pdf
https://www.franklinma.gov/sites/g/files/vyhlif6896/f/uploads/9e._23-890.pdf
https://www.franklinma.gov/sites/g/files/vyhlif6896/f/uploads/9f._23-32_0.pdf
https://www.franklinma.gov/sites/g/files/vyhlif6896/f/uploads/9f._23-32_0.pdf
https://www.franklinma.gov/sites/g/files/vyhlif6896/f/uploads/9g._23-29_-.pdf


















































Wllinm Prnncis (Gnvin 
Srentar of the 
Commonwenlth 

The Gommomocalh gfMassachusetts 
kitany fthe Commonwcahh 

. liete Mons, Boston, .Massachusetts 09133 

TO WHOM |T MAY CONCERN: 

Mareh 27, 2023 

I hercby certify that a certificatc of organization of a Limited Liability Company was 
filed in this oflicc by 

HERE COME TWO GREEKS LLC 

in accordance with the provisions of Massachusetts General Laws Chapter 156C on October 3, 
2022. 

l further certify that said Limited Liability Company has filed all annual reports due and 
paid all fees with respect to such reports; that said Limited Liability Company has not filed a 
certificate of cancellation; that there are no proceedings presently pending under the 
Massachusetts General Laws Chapter 156C, § 70 for said Limited Liability Company's 
dissolution: and that said Limited Liability Company is in good standing with this office. 

Processed By:BOD 

l also certify that the names of all managers listed in the most recent filing are: 
KATRINA PSIKARAKIS 

1 further certify, the names of all persons authorized to execute documents filed with this 
office and listed in the most recent filing are: KATRINA PSIKARAKIS 

The names of all persons authorized to act with respect to real property listed in the most 
recent fnling are: KATRINA PSIKARAKIS 

In testimony of which, 

I have hereunto affixed the 

Great Seal of the Commonwealth 

on the date first above written. 

Secretary of the Commonwealth 







 
 

 
 

 
NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING 

FRANKLIN, MA 
New Section 12 All Alcoholic Beverages License  

Here Come Two Greeks, LLC d/b/a Sierra's Brick Oven Pizza & Pub 
 

The Franklin Town Council will hold a Public Hearing on an application by Here Come Two Greeks, 
LLC d/b/a Sierra's Brick Oven Pizza & Pub, located at 370 King St., Franklin for a new Section 12 All 
Alcoholic Beverages License. This hearing will be held on May 3, 2023 at 7:00 PM and will provide an 
open forum for discussion. Location: Municipal Building, 2nd floor Council Chambers, 355 E. Central 
St., Franklin and will also be available via the “ZOOM” platform. Residents can visit the Town website 
(Franklinma.gov) calendar on and after April 28, 2023 for updated meeting information. For questions, 
please call the Town Administrator’s Office at (508) 520-4949. 
 
Submitted by, 
Julie McCann  
 
 



NOTICE TO ABUTTERS

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING
FRANKLIN, MA

New Section 12 All Alcoholic Beverages License
Here Come Two Greeks, LLC d/b/a Sierra's Brick Oven Pizza & Pub

The Franklin Town Council will hold a Public Hearing on an application by Here Come Two Greeks,
LLC d/b/a Sierra's Brick Oven Pizza & Pub, located at 370 King St., Franklin for a new Section 12 All
Alcoholic Beverages License. This hearing will be held on May 3, 2023 at 7:00 PM and will provide an
open forum for discussion. Location: Municipal Building, 2nd floor Council Chambers, 355 E. Central
St., Franklin and will also be available via the “ZOOM” platform. Residents can visit the Town website
(Franklinma.gov) calendar on and after April 28, 2023 for updated meeting information. For questions,
please call the Town Administrator’s Office at (508) 520-4949.











LICENSE TRANSACTION

New Common Victualler §12 Restaurant, All Alcoholic Beverages

Here Come Two Greeks, LLC
d/b/a Sierra’s Brick Oven Pizza & Pub
370 King Street
Franklin, MA 02038

Here Come Two Greeks, LLC d/b/a Sierra’s Brick Oven Pizza & Pub, is seeking approval for a
New §12 Restaurant, All Alcoholic Beverages license and to approve the manager, Katrina S.
Psikarakis.

All departments have signed off on this application.

MOTION to approve the request by Here Come Two Greeks, LLC d/b/a Sierra’s Brick Oven
Pizza & Pub, for a New Section 12 Restaurant All Alcoholic Beverages License and to approve
Katrina S. Psikarakis as the manager.

DATED: _________________, 2023

VOTED:

UNANIMOUS: ________________

A True Record Attest: YES: ______ NO: _______

ABSTAIN: _____________

ABSENT: ______________

RECUSED: _____________

Nancy Danello, CMC
Town Clerk ________________________

Glenn Jones, Clerk
Franklin Town Council



LICENSE TRANSACTION

Change of Manager

RARE Hospitality International, Inc.
d/b/a Longhorn Steakhouse
250 Franklin Village Drive
Franklin, MA 02038

RARE Hospitality International, Inc. d/b/a Longhorn Steakhouse, is seeking approval for a
Change of Manager on their §12 Restaurant, All Alcoholic Beverages License. The new manager
will be Michael Barbosa.

All Departments have signed off on this application.

MOTION to approve the request by RARE Hospitality International, Inc. d/b/a Longhorn
Steakhouse, for a Change of Manager to Michael Barbosa.

DATED: _________________, 2023

VOTED:

UNANIMOUS: ________________

A True Record Attest: YES: ______ NO: _______

ABSTAIN: _____________

ABSENT: ______________

RECUSED: _____________

Nancy Danello, CMC
Town Clerk ________________________

Glenn Jones, Clerk
Franklin Town Council



00056-RS-0430











MICHAEL BARBOSA

MANAGEMENT/SALES

Accomplished and dynamic professional, consistently recognized for effective operations and client relationship
management and ability to develop sales and marketing strategies, delivering profitable solutions to attract and
maintain accounts and customers, and propel company growth. A highly dedicated individual and a proven leader with
documented success in progressively dynamic and challenging positions, with working knowledge of the principles and
techniques of effective supervision and training. Self-motivated and efficient with a valuable track record in business
development and account management strategies, with proven ability to work effectively in busy environments with
positive results. Proactive with excellent interpersonal and communication skills, experienced in working with different
personalities including clients and vendors as well as working on own initiative.

Core Competencies
Account Management Organizational Leadership Sales & Marketing Business Development

Strategic Planning Quality Control Staff Development & Training HR & Administrative Functions
Negotiation & Representation Skills Project Management Finance Customer Service

PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE

Darden Restaurant Company 12/2022 - Present
Lonhorn Steakhouse
Managing Partner

Handled planning, organization and coordination of staff and resources, to ensure efficient and preparedness of
restaurant operations to generate and increase profit. Handled and directed hiring, training and scheduling of staff for
Front of house, Bar and Kitchen area. Managed daily cash handling, invoice management and payroll tip reporting.

Darden Restaurant Company 08/2012 - 02/2022
Lonhorn Steakhouse
Manager

Handled planning, organization and coordination of staff and resources, to ensure efficient and preparedness of
restaurant operations to generate and increase profit. Handled and directed hiring, training and scheduling of staff
for Front of house, Bar and Kitchen area. Managed daily cash handling, invoice management and payroll tip
reporting.

Advantage Building Solutions (ABS) Attleboro MA 06/2011 – Present
Account Manager / Consultant / Estimator
Served as primary contact for clients. Provided excellent customer service to accounts as well as represent clients
needs and goals within the organization to ensure quality. Established relationship with clients to encourage new
and repeat business opportunities. Ensured that all processes and procedures are completed and quality
standards are met. Handled client issues and ensured timely resolutions are provided. Streamlined accounts
payable, receivable, and payroll and provided a detailed general ledger. Conducted cross training to
owner/operator and employees in Quick Books Pro application implementation and setup. Provided cost
estimates for projects by analyzing proposals, identifying labor, material and time requirements. Handled client
inquiries and provided resolution to any discrepancies.
Key Highlights:
● Expanded construction craft to include a skilled labor force in Steel Stud Framing, Dry Wall and Acoustic

Ceilings.



● Successfully implemented new business venture plans for a successful Plastering Company to expand
marketability to include multi-facets of construction and consolidate large project estimating.

Friendly’s Restaurant Corporation Springfield MA 11/2004 – 03/2011
District Manager
Managed and oversaw staff, processes and operations for restaurant chains within Central Massachusetts.
Ensured compliance with local, state and federal regulations including health and safety rules. Provided strategic
oversight for multiple sites ranging from a minimum of six to a maximum of 14 locations. Implemented start-up
plans aligned with corporate marketing vision and executed facility conversions plans to revitalize sales of
business. Managed and defined human resources functions focusing on management and staff development,
ensuring adherence and establishing service standards, practices and procedures for all business operations.
Key Highlight:
● Annual Gross Sales accountability range between 4.6 million to 12.2 million

Huffy Service First Inc., Miamisburg OH 2001 - 11/2004
New England Area Manager

Managed and handled operations including hiring, firing, training and providing assistance and directions to
employees. Oversaw and manage human resource functions on selecting productive and highly skilled workforce
for 60 service technicians and 20 merchandising representatives. Created and implemented time-management
and cost control measures to increase profitability in the area.

Key Highlight:
● Successfully coordinated product assembly and merchandising needs for National Retail Chains such as

Home Depot. Lowes, Target, Ames, KB Toys, Wal-Mart and Kmart.

Hops Restaurant and Brewery Inc., Clearwater, Florida
Managing Partner Newington, Connecticut 1998 - 2001
Training Manager for new Unit Openings in Connecticut and Rhode Island 1998 - 2000
Managing Partner Newington, Connecticut 2000 - 2001
Implemented an efficient, high energy and professional approach in store operations and management to balance
service with cost to ensure profitability. Handled profit and loss, and managed net sales of 3.5 million.

CLF Inc., DBA Café La France, Village Bean, Cactus Grill, La Grande Café 1995 - 1998
Area Manager Providence, Rhode Island and Metro Boston Market

Managed and handled full service concept development in Providence, RI and Metro MA Market. Prepared annual
operations budget accordingly to meet or exceed company goals and guidelines. Assisted in the development of
the Cactus Grill Concept in Providence, RI and expanded the concepts into Framingham, MA, Hopkinton, MA and
Smithfield, RI. Participated in the purchase and revamp of the Le Grand Café location to maximize service and
profitability.
Key Highlight:
● Promoted from General Manager of the Le Grand Café at the Chestnut Hill Mall Location in Boston to Area

Manager of full service concept development in Providence, RI and Metro MA Market

New England Restaurant Companies, Randolph, Massachusetts 1993 - 1995
Manager Berttucci’s Marlborough, Massachusetts 1994 - 1995
Manager Chili’s Bar and Grill East Providence, Rhode Island 1993 - 1994
Manager Chili’s Bar and Grill Brockton, Massachusetts 1993 - 1994

Handled planning, organization and coordination of staff and resources, to ensure efficient and preparedness of
restaurant operations to generate and increase profit. Handled and directed hiring, training and scheduling of staff
for Front of house, Bar and Kitchen area. Managed daily cash handling, invoice management and payroll tip



reporting.
OTHER EXPERIENCES

Old Country Buffet Inc. Dartmouth, MA 1991 - 1993
Manager

Ponderosa SteakHouse MultiMedia Steak House Inc., Dallas, Texas 1984 - 1991
Cook, Supervisor, Manager, General Manager

EDUCATION AND CREDENTIALS

Bristol Community College - Attleboro, MA

CERTIFICATIONS
Barcode Certification 2001

Training Achievement Program (TAP Series) Proctor 9/2010-9/2012
Food Safety Manager Certification Training "ServSafe" TAP

COMPUTER SKILLS

Excel 2010, Word 2010, Power Point 2008, Outlook 2010, QuickBooks Pro 2010











LICENSE TRANSACTION

Change of Officers/Directors/LLC Managers

99 Restaurants of Boston, LLC
d/b/a 99 Restaurant
847 West Central Street
Franklin, MA 02038

99 Restaurants of Boston, LLC d/b/a 99 Restaurant is seeking approval for a change of
Officers/Directors/LLC Managers on their §12 Restaurant, All Alcoholic Beverages License.
Wendy Harkness is being removed as LLC Manager and Secretary, Charles Noyes is being
removed as LLC Manager and President and Kurt Schnaubelt is being removed as LLC Manager
and CFO. The new LLC Managers will be Clint Lautenschleger, Marjorie Nemzura, Phillip
Purcell, Mark Spurgin and Kara Jacobs.

The ABCC has granted preliminary approval.

MOTION to approve the request by 99 Restaurants of Boston, LLC d/b/a 99 Restaurant for a
change of Officers/Directors/LLC Managers as described above.

DATED: _________________, 2023

VOTED:

UNANIMOUS: ________________

A True Record Attest: YES: ______ NO: _______

ABSTAIN: _____________

ABSENT: ______________

RECUSED: _____________

Nancy Danello, CMC
Town Clerk ________________________

Glenn Jones, Clerk
Franklin Town Council













































Cory J. Spear

Education: Johnson & Wales University Providence, RI
B.S. Food Service Management 5/06

Experience:
7/21-present General Managing Partner Franklin, MA

Ninety Nine Restaurant
Lead and develop team as we recover from Covid
Responsible for guest satisfaction, team development, building sales, profit,
Strengthening community ties

9/18-6/21 General Managing Partner Worcester, MA
Ninety Nine Restaurant
Maintained hourly turnover of 36%
Increased profitability by 20% in first 6 months
Led COVID changes/introduced outside dining/reopen standards. Drove sales
from down 50% to even/positive over 2019

2/17 - 9/18 Assistant General Manager Providence, RI
McCormick & Schmick’s
Lead hourly training programs and certified training team
Drive increased guest satisfaction through focusing on service standards
Coach hourly team through weekly audits/one on one’s/pre shift
Responsible for all areas of controllables and meeting budgeted costs

8/11-2/17 General Managing Partner Canton, MA / Seekonk, MA
Ninety Nine Restaurant
Led team through a re-imaging of restaurant increased sales 25% in first 8 weeks
Partnered with local community groups to strengthen ties to community
Served as divisional mentor to eight managers focused on hourly training /
staffing / new menu roll outs
Developed two managers to GM and three hourly team members into managers
Improved guest satisfaction scores by 15% and maintained above company goal

6/06-8/11 Assistant Manager
Ninety Nine Restaurant South Eastern MA locations
Use company mission to help grow sales, guest counts, and check averages 2%
Serve as the divisional mentor to other service managers
Responsible for front of house hiring/ training and new menu rollouts
Actively involved with community marketing/sponsorships

Skills & Achievements: 2019 Massachusetts Boys & Girls Club State Youth of the Year Judge



4/19/23, 10:50 AM about:blank

about:blank 1/2

Town of Franklin, MA
Nancy Danello, CMC

Town Clerk
355 East Central Street, Franklin, MA 02038

Date Issued: March 9,
2022
Record #: 30617
Certificate #: 22-48

BUSINESS VERIFICATION CERTIFICATE
In conformity with the provisions of Chapter 110, Section 5 of the General Laws, as amended, the undersigned
hereby declare(s) that a business under the title of:

99 Restaraunts & Pub #30130  is conducted at: 847 WEST CENTRAL ST

by the following person:

FULL NAME RESIDENCE
99 Restaurants of Boston LLC 3038 Sidco Drive, Nashville, TN 37204

A certificate issued in accordance with this section shall be in force and effect for four years from the date of issue
and shall be renewed each four years thereafter so long as such business shall be conducted and shall lapse and
be void unless so renewed.

Expiration Date: March 9, 2026

_____________________________________________
Business Owner Signature #1

_____________________________________________
Business Owner Signature #2

A True Attest Copy
 

Nancy Danello, CMC
Acting Town Clerk
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Merrimack, New Hampshire
Andover, Massachusetts
Greenfield, Massachusetts
Ellsworth, Maine

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 

To the Town Council 
Town of Franklin, Massachusetts 

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Opinions 
We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business‐type 
activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Town of Franklin, 
Massachusetts (the Town), as of and for the year ended June 30, 2022, and the related notes to the 
financial statements, which collectively comprise the Town’s basic financial statements as listed in 
the table of contents.  

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the 
respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business‐type activities, each 
major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Town of Franklin, 
Massachusetts as of June 30, 2022, and the respective changes in financial position and, where 
applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles 
generally accepted in the United States of America. 

Basis for Opinions 
We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United 
States of America (GAAS) and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government 
Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Our responsibilities 
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the 
Financial Statements section of our report. We are required to be independent of the Town and 
to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements 
relating to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and 
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinions. 

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements 
The Town’s management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial 
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of 
America, and for the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to 
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the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are 
conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the Town’s 
ability to continue as a going concern for twelve months beyond the financial statement date, 
including any currently known information that may raise substantial doubt shortly thereafter. 

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a 
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an 
auditor’s report that includes our opinions. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but 
is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance 
with GAAS and Government Auditing Standards will always detect a material misstatement when 
it exists. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for 
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, 
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Misstatements are considered material if 
there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the 
judgment made by a reasonable user based on the financial statements.  

In performing an audit in accordance with GAAS and Government Auditing Standards, we:  

 Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the
audit.

 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks. Such procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.

 Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Town’s internal control. Accordingly, no
such opinion is expressed.

 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

 Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the
aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the Town’s ability to continue as a going
concern for a reasonable period of time.



800.282.2440  |  melansoncpas.com

 

3 

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other 
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal 
control‐related matters that we identified during the audit.  
 
Required Supplementary Information 
Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that Man‐
agement’s Discussion and Analysis, the budgetary comparison for the General Fund, and certain 
pension and OPEB schedules be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such 
information is the responsibility of management and, although not a part of the basic financial 
statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be 
an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate 
operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the 
required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted 
in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods 
of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with management’s 
responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained 
during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any 
assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient 
evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.  
 
Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 
 
In accordance with Government  Auditing  Standards, we have also issued our report dated 
March 30, 2023 on our consideration of the Town's internal control over financial reporting and 
on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant 
agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope of our 
testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, 
and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the Town’s internal control over financial 
reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with 
Government Auditing Standards in considering the Town’s internal control over financial reporting 
and compliance. 
 

 
 

Andover, Massachusetts 
March 30, 2023 
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
 
 
As management of the Town of Franklin, Massachusetts (the Town) we offer readers this narrative 
overview and analysis of the financial activities of the Town for the fiscal year ended June 30, 
2022. 

Overview of the Financial Statements 

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the basic financial 
statements. The basic financial statements are comprised of three components (1) government‐
wide financial statements, (2) fund financial statements, and (3) notes to financial statements. This 
report also contains required supplementary information in addition to the basic financial 
statements themselves. 
 
Government‐Wide Financial Statements 
The government‐wide financial statements are designed to provide readers with a broad 
overview of our finances in a manner similar to a private‐sector business. 
 
The Statement of Net Position presents information on all assets, liabilities, and deferred outflows 
and inflows of resources with the difference reported as net position. Over time, increases or 
decreases in net position may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position is 
improving or deteriorating. 
 
The Statement of Activities presents information showing how the Town’s net position changed 
during the most recent fiscal year. All changes in net position are reported as soon as the 
underlying event giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. 
Thus, revenues and expenses are reported in this statement for some items that will only result 
in cash flows in future fiscal periods (e.g., uncollected taxes and earned but unused vacation 
leave). 
 
Both of the government‐wide financial statements distinguish functions that are principally 
supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues (governmental activities) from other 
functions that are intended to recover all or a significant portion of their costs through user fees 
and charges (business‐type activities). The governmental activities include general government, 
public safety, education, public works, health and human services, and culture and recreation. The 
business‐type activities include sewer, water, and solid waste activities. 
 
Fund Financial Statements 
A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over resources that have 
been segregated for specific activities or objectives. Fund accounting is used to ensure and 
demonstrate compliance with finance‐related legal requirements. The Town’s funds can be 
divided into three categories: governmental funds, proprietary funds, and fiduciary funds. 



 

5 

Governmental Funds 
Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions reported as 
governmental activities in the government‐wide financial statements. However, unlike the 
government‐wide financial statements, governmental fund financial statements focus on near‐
term inflows and outflows of spendable resources, as well as on balances of spendable resources 
available at the end of the fiscal year. Such information may be useful in evaluating the Town’s 
near‐term financing requirements. 
 
Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government‐wide financial 
statements, it is useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar 
information presented for governmental activities in the government‐wide financial statements. By 
doing so, readers may better understand the long‐term impact of the Town’s near‐term financing 
decisions. Reconciliations are provided to facilitate this comparison between governmental funds 
and governmental activities. 
 
Proprietary Funds 
Proprietary fund reporting focuses on the determination of operating income, changes in net 
position (or cost recovery), financial position, and cash flows. The proprietary fund category 
includes enterprise funds. 
 
Enterprise funds are used to report activity for which a fee is charged to external users, and must 
be used when one of the following criteria are met (1) activity is financed with debt that is secured 
solely by a pledge of the net revenues from fees and charges, (2) laws or regulations require the 
activity’s costs of providing services be recovered with fees and charges, and (3) the pricing policies 
of the activity establish fees and charges designed to recover its costs, including capital costs such 
as depreciation or debt service. The primary focus on these criteria is on fees charged to external 
users. Enterprise funds are used to report the same functions presented as business‐type activities 
in the government‐wide financial statements, only in more detail. Specifically, enterprise funds are 
used to account for sewer, water, and solid waste operations. The sewer and water funds are 
considered to be major funds. 
 
Fiduciary Funds 
Fiduciary funds are used to account for resources held for the benefit of parties outside of the 
Town. Fiduciary funds are not reflected in the government‐wide financial statements because the 
resources of those funds are not available to support the Town’s programs. The accounting used 
for fiduciary funds is much like that used for proprietary funds. 
 
Notes to Financial Statements 
The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding of the data 
provided in the government‐wide and fund financial statements. 
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Required Supplementary Information 
In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this report also presents 
certain required supplementary information which is required to be disclosed by accounting 
principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 

Financial Highlights 

 As of the close of the current fiscal year, net position in governmental activities was $88,726,609 
a change of $4,624,779, and net position in business‐type activities was $64,553,838, a 
change of $3,831,604. 

 As of the close of the current fiscal year, governmental funds reported combined ending fund 
balances of $43,375,734, a change of $5,168,383 in comparison to the prior year. 

 At the end of the current fiscal year, unassigned fund balance for the General Fund was 
$15,270,016, a change of $939,347 in comparison to the prior year. 

Government‐Wide Financial Analysis 

The following is a summary of condensed government‐wide financial data for the current and 
prior fiscal year. 
 

2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021

Assets

Current and other assets $ 54,892     $ 46,606     $ 15,013  $ 14,842  $ 69,905    $ 61,448    

Capital assets 221,515   224,918   76,065  75,119  297,580  300,037  

Total Assets 276,407   271,524   91,078  89,961  367,485  361,485  

Deferred Outflows of Resources 5,800        6,744       76          96          5,876      6,840      

Liabilities

Current l iabil ities 13,957     11,403     3,905    4,094    17,862    15,497    

Noncurrent l iabil ities 159,014   163,970   22,427  24,975  181,441  188,945  

Total Liabil ities 172,971   175,373   26,332  29,069  199,303  204,442  

Deferred Inflows of Resources 20,509     18,794     269       266       20,778    19,060    

Net Position

Net investment in capital assets 163,529   167,583   53,264  50,497  216,793  218,080  

Restricted 14,425     12,280     ‐        ‐        14,425    12,280    

Unrestricted (89,227)    (95,762)    11,289  10,225  (77,938)   (85,537)   

Total Net Position $ 88,727     $ 84,101     $ 64,553  $ 60,722  $ 153,280  $ 144,823  

NET POSITION (in thousands)

Governmental 

Activities

Business‐Type

Activities Total
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As noted earlier, net position may serve over time as a useful indicator of the Town’s financial 
position. At the close of the most recent fiscal year, total net position was $153,280,447, a change 
of $8,456,383 in comparison to the prior year. 
 
The largest portion of net position $216,792,429 reflects our investment in capital assets (e.g., 
land, buildings, machinery, equipment, and infrastructure), less any related debt used to acquire 
those assets that is still outstanding. These capital assets are used to provide services to citizens; 
consequently, these assets are not available for future spending. Although the investment in 
capital assets is reported net of related debt, it should be noted that the resources needed to repay 
this debt must be provided from other sources, since the capital assets themselves cannot be used 
to liquidate these liabilities. 
 
An additional portion of net position $14,425,034 represents resources that are subject to 
external restrictions on how they may be used. The remaining balance of unrestricted net position 
is a deficit of $(77,937,016) primarily resulting from unfunded pension and OPEB liabilities. 

 

2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021

Revenues

Program revenues:

Charges for services $ 9,721        $ 7,009       $ 16,981  $ 16,257  $ 26,702    $ 23,266    

Operating grants and

  contributions 49,127     59,196     760       ‐        49,887    59,196    

General revenues:

Property taxes 88,647     84,353     ‐        ‐        88,647    84,353    

Excises 6,479        5,951       ‐        ‐        6,479      5,951      

Penalties, interest, and other

  taxes 375           431           ‐        ‐        375          431          

Grants and contributions not

  restricted to specific programs 5,315        4,892       ‐        ‐        5,315      4,892      

Investment income (loss) (332)          472           30          29          (302)        501          

Miscellaneous 557           350           66          307       623          657          

Betterment revenue ‐            ‐            14          13          14            13            

Total Revenues 159,889   162,654   17,851  16,606  177,740  179,260  

CHANGES IN NET POSITION (in thousands)

Governmental 

Activities

Business‐Type

Activities Total

 
 

(continued) 
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(continued) 
 

2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021

Expenses

General government 15,946     15,022     ‐        ‐        15,946    15,022    

Public safety 16,248     16,972     ‐        ‐        16,248    16,972    

Education 102,683   109,149   ‐        ‐        102,683  109,149  

Public works 7,974        7,546       ‐        ‐        7,974      7,546      

Human services 1,397        1,118       ‐        ‐        1,397      1,118      

Culture and recreation 2,566        2,293       ‐        ‐        2,566      2,293      

Interest on long‐term debt 2,291        2,413       ‐        ‐        2,291      2,413      

Intergovernmental 6,171        6,034       ‐        ‐        6,171      6,034      

Sewer services ‐            ‐            5,193    5,290    5,193      5,290      

Water services ‐            ‐            6,481    5,659    6,481      5,659      

Solid waste services ‐            ‐            2,333    2,476    2,333      2,476      

Total Expenses 155,276   160,547   14,007  13,425  169,283  173,972  

4,613        2,107       3,844    3,181    8,457      5,288      

Transfers in (out) 13             (23)            (13)        23          ‐           ‐           

Change in net position 4,626        2,084       3,831    3,204    8,457      5,288      

84,101     82,017     60,722  57,518  144,823  139,535  

Net position ‐ end of year $ 88,727     $ 84,101     $ 64,553  $ 60,722  $ 153,280  $ 144,823  

Change in net position before transfers

Net position ‐ beginning of year

Governmental 

Activities

Business‐Type

Activities Total

 
 

Governmental Activities 
Governmental activities for the year resulted in a change in net position of $4,624,779. Key 
elements of this change are as follows: 
 

General Fund operating results $ 2,109,213      

Change in pension expense from GASB 68 4,130,878      

Change in OPEB expense from GASB 75 (1,728,046)     

Other 112,734         

     Total $ 4,624,779      
 

 

Business‐Type Activities 
Business‐type activities for the year resulted in a change in net position of $3,831,604. The Water 
Fund’s net position increased $2,496,918 primarily due to user rates raised for capital outlay in 
the amount of $2,103,000. The Sewer Fund’s net position increased $916,028 primarily due to 
user rates raised for capital outlay in the amount of $506,000. 
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Financial Analysis of Town’s Funds 

As noted earlier, fund accounting is used to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance‐
related legal requirements. 
 
Governmental Funds 
The focus of governmental funds is to provide information on near‐term inflows, outflows, and 
balances of spendable resources. Such information is useful in assessing financing requirements. In 
particular, unassigned fund balance may serve as a useful measure of the Town’s net resources 
available for spending at the end of the fiscal year. 
 
General Fund 
The General Fund is the chief operating fund. At the end of the current fiscal year, unassigned 
fund balance of the General Fund was $15,270,016, while total fund balance was $27,484,449. 
As a measure of the General Fund’s liquidity, it may be useful to compare both unassigned fund 
balance and total fund balance to General Fund expenditures. Refer to the table below. 
 

General Fund 6/30/22 6/30/21 Change

Unassigned fund balance $ 15,270,016    $ 14,330,669    $ 939,347      11.7%

Total fund balance $ 27,484,449    $ 25,375,236    $ 2,109,213   21.1%

% of

 General

Fund Expenditures*

 
 

* Expenditure amounts used to calculate the above percentages have been adjusted to exclude the on‐behalf 
payment from the Commonwealth of Massachusetts to the Massachusetts Teachers Retirement System of 
$9,687,057. 

 
The total fund balance of the General Fund changed by $2,109,213 during the current fiscal year. 
Key factors in this change are as follows: 
 

Use of free cash as a funding source $ (4,470,514) 

Revenues in excess of budget 3,445,832  

Expenditures and encumbrances less than budget 1,182,136  

Increase to stabilization funds 1,266,241  

Other 685,518     

     Total $ 2,109,213  
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Included in the fund balance of the General Fund are the Town’s stabilization accounts with the 
following balances: 
 

6/30/22 6/30/21

General stabilization $ 6,442,797   $ 6,634,735   $ (191,938)       

Budget stabilization 2,004,900   1,039,145   965,755        

Open space acquisition stabilization 2,479,594   2,533,290   (53,696)         

Athletic fields stabilization 769,918      636,309      133,609        

Fire truck stabilization 16,462        16,855        (393)              

Property acquisition / FAC maintenance stabilization 283,510      290,283      (6,773)           

Traffic signal stabilization 4,651          4,649          2                   

Metacomet Emergency Communications Center (MECC) 887,694      468,019      419,675        

     Total $ 12,889,526 $ 11,623,285 $ 1,266,241     

Change

 
 
Federal Grants Fund Major Governmental Fund 
The fund balance of the Federal Grants Fund major governmental fund changed by $62,968 
primarily from timing differences between the receipt and disbursement of grants. 
 
Nonmajor Governmental Funds 
The fund balance of the nonmajor governmental funds changed by $2,996,202 primarily from 
timing differences between the receipt and disbursement of grants and timing differences 
between capital expenditures and permanent financing of capital projects. 
 
Proprietary Funds 
Proprietary funds provide the same type of information found in the business‐type activities 
reported in the government‐wide financial statements, but in more detail. 
 
Unrestricted net position of the enterprise funds at the end of the year amounted to $11,290,172, a 
change of $1,064,630 in comparison to the prior year.  

General Fund Budgetary Highlights 

Differences between the original budget and the final amended budget resulted in an overall 
change in appropriations of $10,170,952 comprised primarily of $5,555,109 of prior year 
encumbrances and article carryforwards and $4,470,514 of various capital items funded by free 
cash and transfers. 
 
Revenue surplus for the current year was $3,445,832 compared to $3,210,191 in the prior year, 
primarily due to more favorable budgetary results from motor vehicle excise collections, charges 
for services, and intergovernmental revenue. 
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Capital Assets and Debt Administration 

Capital Assets 
Total investment in capital assets for governmental and business‐type activities at year‐end 
amounted to $297,579,793 (net of accumulated depreciation). This investment in capital assets 
includes land, construction in progress, buildings and improvements, machinery, equipment and 
furnishings, and infrastructure. 
 
Major capital asset events during the current fiscal year include the following acquisitions: 
 

 $4,590,000 for Maple Hill land. 

 $1,212,354 for sewer interceptor replacement. 

 $899,066 for technology upgrades. 

 $760,037 for Arlington Street waterline improvements. 
 
Additional information on capital assets can be found in the Notes to Financial Statements. 
 
Long‐Term Debt 
At the end of the current fiscal year, total bonds and loans outstanding, including unamortized 
premium, were $83,098,642, all of which was backed by the full faith and credit of the Town. 
 
During the fiscal year, the Town’s Standard & Poor’s credit rating increased to AAA from AA+. 
 
Additional information on long‐term debt can be found in the Notes to Financial Statements. 
 
 
Stabilization and Other Accounts 
 
The Town has made extensive efforts to maintain and increase their stabilization and other 
account balances. This effort allows the Town to reduce future debt requirements and stabilize 
Town finances. There have been many different stabilization funds that have been created and 
used throughout the years based on the Town’s needs. The other account balances are set aside 
to prepare the Town for future costs including OPEB. Refer to page 10 for the stabilization detail. 
Refer to page 23 for the OPEB reserve established as a fiduciary trust fund. 
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Other reserve accounts are comprised of the following: 
 

Affordable housing trust 1,031,117$       

Workers' compensation fund 341,115             

Unemployment compensation 358,356             

Group insurance 687,151             

Municipal insurance 49,460               

2,467,199$       
 

 
 
Requests for Information 
 
This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the Town of Franklin’s finances 
for all those with an interest in the Town’s finances. Questions concerning any of the information 
provided in this report or requests for additional financial information should be addressed to: 
 

Finance Director’s Office 

Town of Franklin 

355 East Central Street 

Franklin, Massachusetts 02038 

 



 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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Governmental Business‐Type

Activities Activities Total

Assets

Current:

Cash and short‐term investments $ 35,643,413    $ 10,329,795    $ 45,973,208    

Investments 15,914,707    ‐                   15,914,707    

Receivables, net of allowance for uncollectibles:

Property taxes 728,659          ‐                   728,659          

Excises 478,048          ‐                   478,048          

User fees 1,148,845       4,283,611       5,432,456       

Intergovernmental ‐                   357,745          357,745          

Betterments 370                  10,218            10,588            

Other assets 401,378          ‐                   401,378          

Total Current Assets 54,315,420    14,981,369    69,296,789    

Noncurrent:

Receivables, net of allowance for uncollectibles:

Property taxes 575,880          ‐                   575,880          

Betterments ‐                   32,443            32,443            

Capital  assets:

Land and construction in progress 23,357,695    6,107,944       29,465,639    

Other capital  assets, net of accumulated depreciation 198,157,556  69,956,598    268,114,154  

Total Noncurrent Assets 222,091,131  76,096,985    298,188,116  

Total Assets 276,406,551  91,078,354    367,484,905  

Deferred Outflows of Resources

Related to pension 5,637,259       73,916            5,711,175       

Related to OPEB 162,997          2,138               165,135          

Total Deferred Outflows of Resources 5,800,256       76,054            5,876,310       

 (continued) 

TOWN OF FRANKLIN, MASSACHUSETTS

Statement of Net Position

June 30, 2022

 
  



 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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(continued)

Governmental Business‐Type

Activities Activities Total

Liabilities

Current:

Warrants and accounts payable 1,900,073       738,278          2,638,351       

Accrued liabil ities 2,453,282       81,125            2,534,407       

Unearned revenue 3,891,491       711,148          4,602,639       

Held for performance guarantees 835,478          ‐                   835,478          

Other current liabil ities 182,350          ‐                   182,350          

Current portion of long‐term liabilities:

Bonds and loans payable 4,616,141       2,369,252       6,985,393       

Compensated absences liabil ity 78,679            4,889               83,568            

Total Current Liabil ities 13,957,494    3,904,692       17,862,186    

Noncurrent:

Bonds and loans payable, net of current portion 55,121,822    20,991,427    76,113,249    

Compensated absences l iabil ity, net of current portion 1,494,906       92,915            1,587,821       

Net pension liability 28,420,518    372,648          28,793,166    

Net OPEB l iabil ity 73,976,506    969,976          74,946,482    

Total Noncurrent Liabil ities 159,013,752  22,426,966    181,440,718  

Total Liabilities 172,971,246  26,331,658    199,302,904  

Deferred Inflows of Resources

Related to pension 12,485,564    163,710          12,649,274    

Related to OPEB 8,023,388       105,202          8,128,590       

Total Deferred Inflows of Resources 20,508,952    268,912          20,777,864    

Net Position

Net investment in capital assets 163,528,763  53,263,666    216,792,429  

Restricted for:

Grants and other statutory restrictions 12,289,677    ‐                   12,289,677    

Permanent funds:  

Nonexpendable 508,930          ‐                   508,930          

Expendable 1,626,427       ‐                   1,626,427       

Unrestricted (89,227,188)   11,290,172    (77,937,016)   

$ 88,726,609    $ 64,553,838    $ 153,280,447  Total Net Position

TOWN OF FRANKLIN, MASSACHUSETTS

Statement of Net Position

June 30, 2022

 
 

 



 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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Operating Business‐

Charges for Grants and Governmental Type

Expenses Services Contributions Activities Activities Total

Governmental Activities

General government $ 15,945,757    $ 1,254,124     $ 1,957,700      $ (12,733,933)  $ ‐                  $ (12,733,933)   

Public safety 16,248,120    3,970,219     228,991         (12,048,910)  ‐                  (12,048,910)   

Education 102,682,735  3,468,474     46,169,024   (53,045,237)  ‐                  (53,045,237)   

Public works 7,973,970       246,084        392,398         (7,335,488)    ‐                  (7,335,488)     

Health and human services 1,397,104       140,614        214,960         (1,041,530)    ‐                  (1,041,530)     

Culture and recreation 2,565,866       641,144        164,303         (1,760,419)    ‐                  (1,760,419)     

Interest on long‐term debt 2,291,472       ‐                 ‐                  (2,291,472)    ‐                  (2,291,472)     

Intergovernmental 6,170,776       ‐                 ‐                  (6,170,776)    ‐                  (6,170,776)     

Total Governmental Activities 155,275,800  9,720,659     49,127,376   (96,427,765)  ‐                  (96,427,765)   

Business‐Type Activities

Sewer services 5,193,474       6,085,276     ‐                  ‐                  891,802         891,802          

Water services 6,480,621       8,166,843     760,037         ‐                  2,446,259     2,446,259       

Solid waste services 2,332,926       2,728,692     ‐                  ‐                  395,766         395,766          

Total Business‐Type Activities 14,007,021    16,980,811  760,037         ‐                  3,733,827     3,733,827       

Total $ 169,282,821  $ 26,701,470  $ 49,887,413   (96,427,765)  3,733,827     (92,693,938)   

General Revenues and Transfers

Property taxes 88,647,375   ‐                  88,647,375    

Excises 6,478,510      ‐                  6,478,510       

Penalties, interest, and other taxes 374,499         ‐                  374,499          

Grants and contributions not restricted

   to specific programs 5,314,963      ‐                  5,314,963       

Investment income (loss) (332,472)        30,350           (302,122)         

Miscellaneous 556,786         66,268           623,054          

Betterment revenue ‐                  14,042           14,042            

Transfers, net 12,883           (12,883)          ‐                   

Total general revenues and transfers 101,052,544 97,777           101,150,321  

   Change in Net Position 4,624,779      3,831,604     8,456,383       

Net Position

Beginning of year 84,101,830   60,722,234   144,824,064  

 End of year $ 88,726,609   $ 64,553,838   $ 153,280,447  

Program Revenues Net (Expenses) Revenues and Changes in Net Position

TOWN OF FRANKLIN, MASSACHUSETTS

Statement of Activities

For the Year Ended June 30, 2022

 



 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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Nonmajor Total

General Federal Grants Governmental Governmental

Fund Fund Funds Funds

Cash and short‐term investments $ 20,952,386  $ 3,612,124    $ 11,078,902 $ 35,643,412  

Investments 10,295,684  ‐                5,619,023    15,914,707  

Receivables:

Property taxes 1,595,137    ‐                14,604         1,609,741    

Excises 846,393        ‐                ‐                846,393       

User fees 2,264,685    ‐                ‐                2,264,685    

Other assets 401,378        ‐                ‐                401,378       

Total Assets $ 36,355,663  $ 3,612,124    $ 16,712,529 $ 56,680,316  

Warrants and accounts payable $ 1,372,800    $ 38,908         $ 488,365       $ 1,900,073    

Accrued liabil ities 1,774,356    ‐                ‐                1,774,356    

Unearned revenue ‐                 3,891,491    ‐                3,891,491    

Held for performance guarantees 835,492        ‐                ‐                835,492       

Other l iabil ities 182,350        ‐                ‐                182,350       

Total Liabil ities 4,164,998    3,930,399    488,365       8,583,762    

Deferred Inflows of Resources

Unavailable revenues 4,706,216    ‐                14,604         4,720,820    

Total Deferred Inflows of Resources 4,706,216    ‐                14,604         4,720,820    

Fund Balances

Nonspendable ‐                 ‐                508,930       508,930       

Restricted 1,436,082    ‐                15,700,630 17,136,712  

Committed 9,741,968    ‐                ‐                9,741,968    

Assigned 1,036,383    ‐                ‐                1,036,383    

Unassigned 15,270,016  (318,275)      ‐                14,951,741  

Total Fund Balances 27,484,449  (318,275)      16,209,560 43,375,734  

Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of Resources

and Fund Balances $ 36,355,663  $ 3,612,124    $ 16,712,529 $ 56,680,316  

Liabilities

Assets

TOWN OF FRANKLIN, MASSACHUSETTS

Balance Sheet

Governmental Funds

June 30, 2022

 



 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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Total Governmental Fund Balances $ 43,375,734   

• Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources

and, therefore, are not reported in the governmental funds. 221,515,251 

• Revenues are reported on the accrual basis of accounting and are not
deferred until collection. 2,931,804      

• In the Statement of Activities, interest is accrued on outstanding long‐term
liabilities, whereas in governmental funds interest is not reported until due. (678,912)        

• Long‐term liabilities are not due and payable in the current period and, 

therefore, are not reported in governmental funds:

          Bonds payable (59,737,963)  

          Net pension liability and related deferred outflows and inflows 

          of resources (35,268,823)  

          Net OPEB liability and related deferred inflows of resources (81,836,897)  

          Compensated absences liability (1,573,585)    

Net Position of Governmental Activities $ 88,726,609   

June 30, 2022

TOWN OF FRANKLIN, MASSACHUSETTS

Reconciliation of Total Governmental Fund Balances
to Net Position of Governmental Activities

in the Statement of Net Position

 
 
  



 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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Nonmajor

General Federal Grants Governmental

Fund Fund Funds

Revenues

Property taxes $ 87,144,701 $ ‐                 $ 1,377,084    $ 88,521,785    

Excises 6,465,227       ‐                 ‐                 6,465,227      

Penalties, interest, and other taxes 330,066          ‐                 2,884            332,950          

Charges for services 3,510,196       ‐                 4,076,762    7,586,958      

Licenses and permits 1,435,383       ‐                 ‐                 1,435,383      

Intergovernmental 42,663,771    534,886        9,956,409    53,155,066    

Fines and forfeitures 60,673            ‐                 3,640            64,313            

Contributions ‐                   ‐                 485,194        485,194          

Investment income (loss) (308,280)         926 (25,131)         (332,485)        

Miscellaneous 592,602          ‐                 459,722        1,052,324      

Total Revenues 141,894,339  535,812        16,336,564  158,766,715  

Expenditures

Current:

General government 10,717,221    ‐                 1,524,660    12,241,881    

Public safety 12,772,985    73,306          639,550        13,485,841    

Education 80,098,977    ‐                 8,828,938    88,927,915    

Public works 5,285,582       ‐                 297,094        5,582,676      

Health and human services 772,567          735                307,045        1,080,347      

Culture and recreation 1,512,114       ‐                 91,286          1,603,400      

Insurance and benefits 13,419,177    ‐                 ‐                 13,419,177    

Debt service:

Principal 4,387,900       ‐                 ‐                 4,387,900      

Interest 2,399,869       ‐                 ‐                 2,399,869      

Intergovernmental 6,170,776       ‐                 ‐                 6,170,776      

Capital outlay 2,151,937       398,803        6,600,845    9,151,585      

Total Expenditures 139,689,105  472,844        18,289,418  158,451,367  

Excess (deficiency) of revenues

over expenditures 2,205,234       62,968          (1,952,854)   315,348          

Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Issuance of bonds ‐                   ‐                 4,665,000    4,665,000      

Bond premiums ‐                   ‐                 175,152        175,152          

Transfers in ‐                   ‐                 108,904        108,904          

Transfers out (96,021)           ‐                 ‐                 (96,021)           

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) (96,021)           ‐                 4,949,056    4,853,035      

Change in fund balance 2,109,213       62,968          2,996,202    5,168,383      

25,375,236 (381,243)      13,213,358  38,207,351    

Fund Balances, at End of Year $ 27,484,449    $ (318,275)      $ 16,209,560  $ 43,375,734    

Fund Balances, at Beginning of Year

Funds

Total

TOWN OF FRANKLIN, MASSACHUSETTS

Governmental Funds

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances

Governmental

For the Year Ended June 30, 2022



 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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$ 5,168,383     

•

Capital outlay 6,954,610     

Depreciation (10,357,381) 

•

Issuance of debt (4,665,000)   

Repayments of debt 4,387,900     

Additions to bond premium (175,152)       

Amortization of bond premium 79,703           

•

712,946         

•

Change in pension expense from GASB 68 4,130,878     

Change in OPEB expense from GASB 75 (1,728,046)   

Change in compensated absences 87,244           

Change in accrued interest 28,694           

$ 4,624,779     

Net Changes in Fund Balances ‐ Total Governmental Funds

Change in Net Position of Governmental Activities

For the Year Ended June 30, 2022

TOWN OF FRANKLIN, MASSACHUSETTS

Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes
in Fund Balances of Governmental Funds to the Statement of Activities

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in  

the Statement of Activities the cost of those assets is allocated over their

estimated useful lives and reported as depreciation expense:

The issuance of long‐term debt (e.g., bonds) provides current financial

resources to governmental funds, while the repayment of the principal of

long‐term debt consumes the financial resources of governmental funds.

Neither transaction, however, has any effect on net position:

Revenues in the Statement of Activities that do not provide current financial

resources are fully deferred in the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, 

use of current financial resources and, therefore, are not reported as

expenditures in governmental funds:

and Changes in Fund Balances. Therefore, the recognition of revenue for

certain types of accounts receivable (i.e., real estate and personal

property, motor vehicle excise, etc.) differ between the two statements.

This amount represents the net change in unavailable revenue.

Some expenses reported in the Statement of Activities do not require the

 



 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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Nonmajor

Sewer Water Solid Waste

Fund Fund Fund Total

Current:

Cash and short‐term investments $ 3,953,660    $ 5,176,756    $ 1,199,379 $ 10,329,795 

Receivables, net of allowance for uncollectibles:

User fees 1,726,740    2,324,286    232,585        4,283,611    

Betterments 10,218          ‐                 ‐                 10,218         

Intergovernmental receivables ‐                 357,745        ‐                 357,745       

Total Current Assets 5,690,618    7,858,787    1,431,964     14,981,369 

Noncurrent:

Receivables, net of allowance for uncollectibles:

Betterments 32,443          ‐                 ‐                 32,443         

Capital assets:

Land and construction in progress 1,679,105    4,381,908    46,931          6,107,944    

Other capital assets, net of accumulated 

depreciation 10,040,195  59,916,403  ‐                 69,956,598 

Total Noncurrent Assets 11,751,743  64,298,311  46,931          76,096,985 

Total Assets 17,442,361  72,157,098  1,478,895     91,078,354 

Deferred Outflows of Resources

Related to pension 27,482          46,434          ‐                 73,916         

Related to OPEB 795                1,343            ‐                 2,138            

Total Deferred Outflows of Resources 28,277          47,777          ‐                 76,054         

Current:

Warrants and accounts payable 110,801        412,560        214,917        738,278       

Accrued l iabil ities 23,172          54,968          2,985             81,125         

Unearned revenue ‐                 711,148        ‐                 711,148       

Current portion of long‐term liabil ities:

Bonds and loans payable 288,000        2,081,252    ‐                 2,369,252    

Compensated absences liabil ity 1,865            2,613            411                4,889            

Total Current Liabil ities 423,838        3,262,541    218,313        3,904,692    

Noncurrent:

Bonds and loans payable, net of current portion 1,963,000    19,028,427  ‐                 20,991,427 

Compensated absences l iabil ity, net of current portion 35,444          49,656          7,815             92,915         

Net pension liabil ity 138,551        234,097        ‐                 372,648       

Net OPEB liabil ity 360,639        609,337        ‐                 969,976       

Total Noncurrent Liabil ities 2,497,634    19,921,517  7,815             22,426,966 

Total Liabil ities 2,921,472    23,184,058  226,128        26,331,658 

Deferred Inflows of Resources

Related to pension 60,868          102,842        ‐                 163,710       

Related to OPEB 39,114          66,088          ‐                 105,202       

Total Deferred Inflows of Resources 99,982          168,930        ‐                 268,912       

Net investment in capital assets 9,670,358    43,546,377  46,931          53,263,666 

Unrestricted 4,778,826    5,305,510    1,205,836     11,290,172 

Total Net Position $ 14,449,184  $ 48,851,887  $ 1,252,767     $ 64,553,838 

TOWN OF FRANKLIN, MASSACHUSETTS

Proprietary Funds

Statement of Net Position

June 30, 2022

Net Position

Business‐Type Activities

Enterprise Funds

Assets

Liabilities



 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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Nonmajor

Sewer Water Solid Waste

Fund Fund Fund Total

Operating Revenues

Charges for services $ 6,085,276    $ 8,166,843    $ 2,728,692  $ 16,980,811  

Operating Expenses

Salaries and benefits 1,099,754    1,769,411    188,807      3,057,972    

Other operating expenses 600,660        1,974,447    2,144,119  4,719,226    

Depreciation 443,429        2,169,359    ‐               2,612,788    

Intergovernmental assessments 2,962,869    ‐                 ‐               2,962,869    

Total Operating Expenses 5,106,712    5,913,217    2,332,926  13,352,855  

Operating Income 978,564        2,253,626    395,766      3,627,956    

Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses)

Investment income 11,900          15,825          2,625          30,350          

Intergovernmental revenue ‐                 760,037 ‐               760,037        

Miscellaneous revenues ‐                 46,001 20,267        66,268          

Interest expense (86,762)         (567,404)      ‐               (654,166)      

Total Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses), Net (74,862)         254,459        22,892        202,489        

and Transfers 903,702        2,508,085    418,658      3,830,445    

Contributions 14,042 ‐                 ‐               14,042          

Transfers (1,716)           (11,167)         ‐               (12,883)         

Change in Net Position 916,028        2,496,918    418,658      3,831,604    

Net Position at Beginning of Year 13,533,156  46,354,969  834,109      60,722,234  

Net Position at End of Year $ 14,449,184  $ 48,851,887  $ 1,252,767  $ 64,553,838  

Income Before Contributions

For the Year Ended June 30, 2022

Enterprise Funds

Business‐Type Activities

TOWN OF FRANKLIN, MASSACHUSETTS

Proprietary Funds

Statement Of Revenues, Expenses And Changes in Net Position

 
  



 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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Nonmajor

Sewer Water Solid Waste

Fund Fund Fund Total

Cash Flows From Operating Activities

Receipts from customers and users $ 5,988,905   $ 7,943,495   $ 2,730,874   $ 16,663,274 

Payments to vendors (3,462,972)  (1,709,001)  (2,111,820)  (7,283,793)  

Payments to employees (1,155,426)  (1,869,738)  (189,112)     (3,214,276)  

Net Cash Provided By Operating Activities 1,370,507   4,364,756   429,942      6,165,205   

Cash Flows From Noncapital Financing Activities

Miscellaneous revenues ‐               46,001         20,267         66,268         

Intergovernmental revenue ‐               1,471,185   ‐               1,471,185   

Transfers out (1,716)          (11,167)       ‐               (12,883)       

Net Cash Provided By (Used For) Noncapital Financing Activities (1,716)          1,506,019   20,267         1,524,570   

Cash Flows From Capital and Related Financing Activities

Acquisition and construction of capital assets (1,399,982)  (2,157,672)  ‐               (3,557,654)  

Principal payments on bonds and loans (321,700)     (2,149,281)  ‐               (2,470,981)  

Principal payments on notes ‐               (1,200,000)  ‐               (1,200,000)  

Interest expense (89,274)       (561,942)     ‐               (651,216)     

Massachusetts Clean Water Trust drawdowns ‐               636,518      ‐               636,518      

Other nonoperating income 25,672         ‐               ‐               25,672         

(1,785,284)  (5,432,377)  ‐               (7,217,661)  

Cash Flows From Investing Activities

Investment income 11,900         15,825         2,625           30,350         

Net Change in Cash and Short‐Term Investments (404,593)     454,223      452,834      502,464      

Cash and Short‐Term Investments, Beginning of Year 4,358,253 4,722,533 746,545      9,827,331   

Cash and Short‐Term Investments, End of Year   $ 3,953,660   $ 5,176,756   $ 1,199,379   $ 10,329,795 

Reconciliation of Operating Income to Net Cash 

Provided by Operating Activities

Operating income $ 978,564      $ 2,253,626   $ 395,766      $ 3,627,956   

Adjustments to reconcile operating income to net

cash provided by operating activities:

Depreciation 443,429      2,169,359   ‐               2,612,788   

Changes in assets, l iabil ities, and deferred outflows/inflows:

User fees receivable (96,371)       (223,348)     2,181           (317,538)     

Deferred outflows ‐ related to pension 7,996           13,715         ‐               21,711         

Deferred outflows ‐ related to OPEB (795)             (1,343)          ‐               (2,138)          

Warrants and accounts payable 100,557      265,446      32,128         398,131      

Net pension l iabil ity (65,706)       (112,200)     ‐               (177,906)     

Net OPEB liabil ity (631)             (3,157)          ‐               (3,788)          

Deferred inflows ‐ related to pension 22,364         37,563         ‐               59,927         

Deferred inflows ‐ related to OPEB (21,072)       (35,951)       ‐               (57,023)       

Other l iabil ities 2,172           1,046           (133)             3,085           

Net Cash Provided By Operating Activities   $ 1,370,507   $ 4,364,756   $ 429,942      $ 6,165,205   

Net Cash (Used For) Capital and Related Financing Activities

Enterprise Funds

TOWN OF FRANKLIN, MASSACHUSETTS

Proprietary Funds

Statement of Cash Flows

For the Year Ended June 30, 2022

Business‐Type Activities

 



 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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Other Post Private

Employment Purpose

Benefits Trust Trust Custodial

Fund Funds Funds

Cash and short‐term investments $ ‐               $ 79,859     $ 422,810     

Investments:

External investment pool 10,505,734 ‐           ‐              

Total Investments 10,505,734 ‐           ‐              

Total Assets 10,505,734 79,859     422,810     

Warrants and accounts payable ‐               2,000 ‐              

Total Liabil ities ‐               2,000       ‐              

Net Position

Restricted for OPEB purposes 10,505,734 ‐           ‐              

‐               77,859     422,810

Total Net Position $ 10,505,734 $ 77,859     $ 422,810     

Restricted for individuals, organizations and 

other governments

Assets

Liabilities

TOWN OF FRANKLIN, MASSACHUSETTS

Fiduciary Funds

Statement of Fiduciary Net Position

June 30, 2022

 
 

  



 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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Other Post

Employment

Benefits Trust

Fund

Additions

Contributions:

Employer $ 3,871,679    $ ‐             $ ‐             

Other ‐                30,250      438,668

Total Contributions 3,871,679    30,250      438,668    

Investment income:

Interest ‐                ‐             35

Decrease in fair value of investments (468,875)      (262)          ‐             

Net investment income (loss) (468,875)      (262)          35              

Total Additions 3,402,804    29,988      438,703    

Deductions

Benefit payments to plan members

beneficiaries and other systems 2,702,679    ‐             ‐             

Scholarship payments ‐                37,750      ‐             

Intergovernmental payments ‐                ‐             32,713

Student activity fund payments ‐                ‐             376,200

Total Deductions 2,702,679    37,750      408,913    

Change in Net Position 700,125       (7,762)       29,790      

Restricted Net Position

Beginning of Year 9,805,609    85,621      393,020    

End of Year $ 10,505,734  $ 77,859      $ 422,810    

Custodial

Funds

TOWN OF FRANKLIN, MASSACHUSETTS

Fiduciary Funds

Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Position

For the Year Ended June 30, 2022

Trust Funds

Purpose

Private
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TOWN OF FRANKLIN, MASSACHUSETTS 
 

Notes to Financial Statements 

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

The accounting policies of the Town of Franklin, Massachusetts (the Town) conform to accounting 
principles generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAP) as applicable to 
governmental units. The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted 
standard setting body for establishing governmental and financial reporting principles. The 
following is a summary of the significant policies of the Town: 
 
Reporting Entity 
The Town is a municipal corporation governed by an elected Town Council. As required by GAAP, 
these financial statements present the Town and applicable component units for which the Town 
is considered to be financially accountable. In fiscal year 2022, it was determined that no entities 
met the component unit requirements of GASB 14 (as amended). 
 
Government‐Wide and Fund Financial Statements 
Government‐Wide Financial Statements 
The government‐wide financial statements (i.e., the Statement of Net Position and the Statement of 
Activities) report information on all of the nonfiduciary activities of the primary government. For 
the most part, the effect of interfund activity has been removed from these statements. 
Governmental activities, which normally are supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues, 
are reported separately from business‐type activities, which rely to a significant extent on fees and 
charges for support.  
 

The Statement of Activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given 
function or segment are offset by program revenues. Direct  expenses are those that are clearly 
identifiable with a specific function or segment. Program revenues include (1) charges to customers 
or applicants who purchase, use, or directly benefit from goods, services, or privileges provided by a 
given function or segment and (2) grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the 
operational or capital requirements of a particular function or segment. Taxes and other items not 
properly included among program revenues are reported instead as general revenues. 
 

Fund Financial Statements 
Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds, proprietary funds, and 
fiduciary funds, even though the latter are excluded from the government‐wide financial 
statements. Major individual governmental funds and major individual enterprise funds are 
reported as separate columns in the fund financial statements. 
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Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation 
Government‐Wide Financial Statements 
The government‐wide financial statements are reported using the economic  resources 
measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recorded when earned and 
expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. 
Property taxes are recognized as revenues in the year for which they are levied. Grants and similar 
items are recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by the provider 
have been met. As a general rule, the effect of interfund activity has been eliminated from the 
government‐wide financial statements. 
 
Amounts reported as program revenues include (1) charges to customers or applicants for goods, 
services, or privileges provided, (2) operating grants and contributions, and (3) capital grants and 
contributions, including special assessments. Internally dedicated resources are reported as general 
revenues rather than as program revenues. Likewise, general revenues include all taxes and excises. 
 
Fund Financial Statements 
Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current  financial  resources 
measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized as soon 
as they are both measurable and available. Revenues are considered to be available when they 
are collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the current 
period. For this purpose, the Town considers property tax revenues to be available if they are 
collected within 60 days of the end of the current fiscal period. All other revenue items are 
considered to be measurable and available only when cash is received. Expenditures generally are 
recorded when a liability is incurred, as under accrual accounting. However, certain expenditures 
such as debt service, claims and judgments, compensated absences, OPEB, and pension are 
recorded only when payment is due. 
 
The Town reports the following major governmental funds: 
 

 The General Fund is the Town’s primary operating fund. It accounts for all financial resources of the 
general government, except those required to be accounted for in another fund. 

 The Federal Grants Fund accounts for federal grant revenues and expenditures. 
 
The proprietary fund financial statements are reported using the economic  resources 
measurement  focus and the accrual  basis  of  accounting. Under this method, revenues are 
recognized when earned and expenses are recorded when liabilities are incurred. 
 
Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items. 
Operating revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and 
delivering goods in connection with a proprietary fund’s principal ongoing operations. The 
principal operating revenues of enterprise funds are charges to customers for sales and services. 
Operating expenses for enterprise funds include the cost of sales and services, administrative 
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expenses, and depreciation on capital assets. All revenues and expenses not meeting this 
definition are reported as nonoperating revenues and expenses. 
 
The Town reports the following major proprietary funds: 
 

 Sewer Fund 

 Water Fund 
 
The fiduciary fund financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement 
focus and the accrual basis of accounting. Under this method, revenues are recognized when earned 
and expenses are recorded when liabilities are incurred. 
 
The Town reports the following fiduciary funds: 
 

 The Other Post‐employment Benefit Trust Fund is used to accumulate resources for health 
insurance benefits for retired employees. 

 The Private‐Purpose Trust Fund is used to account for trust arrangements, other than those 
properly reported in the permanent fund, under which principal and investment income exclu‐
sively benefit individuals, private organizations, or other governments. 

 The Custodial Funds account for fiduciary assets held by the Town in a custodial capacity as 
an agent on behalf of others and are not required to be reported elsewhere on the financial 
statements. Custodial funds include firearms charges collected on behalf of the State, as well as 
student activity funds. 

 
Cash and Investments 
Cash balances from all funds, except those required to be segregated by law, are combined to form 
a consolidation of cash. Cash balances are invested to the extent available, and interest earnings 
are recognized in the General Fund. Certain special revenue, proprietary, and fiduciary funds 
segregate cash, and investment earnings become a part of those funds. 
 
Deposits with financial institutions consist primarily of demand deposits, certificates of deposits, and 
savings accounts. Generally, a cash and investment pool is maintained that is available for use by 
all funds. Each fund’s portion of this pool is reflected on the financial statements under the caption 
“cash and short‐term investments.”  
 
For purpose of the Statement of Cash Flows, the proprietary funds consider investments with 
original maturities of three months or less to be short‐term investments. 
 
Investments are carried at fair value, except certificates of deposit, which are not market‐linked 
and therefore are reported at cost. Where applicable, fair values are based on quotations from 
national securities exchanges, except for certain investments that are required to be presented 
using net asset value (NAV). The NAV per share is the amount of net assets attributable to each 
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share outstanding at the close of the period. Investments measured using NAV for fair value are 
not subject to level classification. 
 
State and local statutes place certain limitations on the nature of deposits and investments 
available. Deposits in any financial institution may not exceed certain levels within the financial 
institution. 
 
Property Tax Limitations 
Legislation known as “Proposition 2½” has limited the amount of revenue that can be derived 
from property taxes. The prior fiscal year’s tax levy limit is used as a base and cannot increase by 
more than 2.5% (excluding new growth), unless an override is voted.  
 
Capital Assets 
Capital assets, which include buildings and improvements, machinery, equipment, and 
furnishings, land, and infrastructure assets, are reported in the applicable governmental or business‐
type activities columns in the government‐wide financial statements and in the proprietary fund 
statements. Capital assets are defined by the Town as assets with an initial individual cost of more 
than $15,000 and an estimated useful life in excess of two years. Such assets are recorded at 
historical cost or estimated historical cost if purchased or constructed. Donated capital assets are 
recorded at acquisition value at the date of donation. The costs of normal maintenance and 
repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially extend assets lives are not 
capitalized. Major outlays for capital assets and improvements are capitalized as projects are 
constructed. 
 
Capital assets are depreciated using the straight‐line method over the following estimated useful 
lives: 

Assets Years

Buildings 40

Building improvements 20

Infrastructure 30 ‐ 50

Machinery, equipment, and furnishings 5
 

 
Compensated Absences 
It is the Town’s policy to permit employees to accumulate earned but unused vacation and sick 
pay benefits. All vested sick and vacation pay is accrued when incurred in the government‐wide, 
proprietary, and fiduciary fund financial statements. A liability for these amounts is reported in 
governmental funds only if they have matured, for example, as a result of employee resignations 
and retirements. 
 
Long‐Term Obligations 
In the government‐wide financial statements, and proprietary fund types in the fund financial 
statements, long‐term debt, and other long‐term obligations are reported in the applicable 
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governmental activities, business‐type activities, or proprietary fund type Statement of Net 
Position. 
 
Fund Equity 
Fund equity at the governmental fund financial reporting level is classified as “fund balance.” Fund 
equity for all other reporting is classified as “net position.” 
 

Fund Balance 
Generally, fund balance represents the difference between current assets/deferred outflows and 
current liabilities/deferred inflows. The Town has implemented GASB Statement No. 54 
(GASB 54), Fund Balance Reporting and Governmental Fund Type Definitions, which enhances the 
usefulness of fund balance information by providing clearer fund balance classifications that can 
be more consistently applied and by clarifying existing governmental fund type definitions, as 
follows: 

 Nonspendable represents amounts that cannot be spent because they are either (1) not in 
spendable form or (2) legally or contractually required to be maintained intact. This fund 
balance classification includes General Fund prepaid expenditures and nonmajor 
governmental fund reserves for the principal portion of permanent trust funds. 

 Restricted represents amounts that are restricted to specific purposes by constraints 
imposed by creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of other governments, 
or constraints imposed by law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation. 
This fund balance classification includes capital projects funded by grants and bond 
issuances, various special revenue funds, and the income portion of permanent trust 
funds. 

 Committed represents amounts that can only be used for specific purposes pursuant to 
constraints imposed by formal action of the Town’s highest level of decision‐making 
authority (Town Council). This fund balance classification includes General Fund non‐lapsing 
capital appropriations approved by Town Council, capital improvement stabilization funds 
(now reported as part of the General Fund per GASB 54), and various special revenue and 
expendable trust funds. 

 Assigned represents amounts that are constrained by the Town’s intent to use these resources 
for a specific purpose. This fund balance classification includes General Fund encumbrances 
that have been established by various Town departments for the expenditure of current year 
budgetary financial resources upon vendor performance in the subsequent budgetary 
period. 

 Unassigned represents amounts that are available to be spent in future periods, general 
stabilization, and deficit funds. The General Fund is the only fund that reports a positive 
unassigned fund balance. 
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When an expenditure is incurred that would qualify for payment from multiple fund balance 
types, the Town uses the following order to liquidate liabilities: restricted, committed, assigned, 
and unassigned. 
 
Net Position 
Net position represents the difference between assets/deferred outflows and liabilities/deferred 
inflows. Net investment in capital assets, consists of capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, 
reduced by the outstanding balances of any borrowing used for the acquisition, construction, or 
improvement of those assets. Net position is reported as restricted when there are limitations 
imposed on use either through enabling legislation adopted by the Town or through external 
restrictions imposed by creditors, grantors, or laws or regulations of other governments. The 
remaining net position is reported as unrestricted. 
 
Use of Estimates 
The preparation of basic financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires management to 
make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and 
disclosures for contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the basic financial statements, and 
the reported amounts of revenues and expenditures/expenses during the fiscal year. Actual 
results could vary from estimates that were used. 

2. Stewardship, Compliance, and Accountability 

Budgetary Information 
The Town Administrator presents, on behalf of the Finance Committee, an operating and capital 
budget for the proposed expenditures of the fiscal year commencing the following July 1. The 
budget, as enacted by Town Council, establishes the legal level of control and specifies that 
certain appropriations are to be funded by particular revenues. The original budget is amended 
during the fiscal year at Town Council meetings as required by changing conditions. 
 
Departments are limited to the line items as voted. Certain items may exceed the line item budget 
as approved if it is for an emergency and for the safety of the general public. These items are 
limited by Massachusetts General Laws and must be raised in the next year’s tax rate. It has been 
the practice of the Town to pay for any of these type of deficiencies by using available funds in 
the year incurred. 
  



 

31 

Formal budgetary integration is employed as a management control device during the year for the 
General Fund and proprietary funds. Effective budgetary control is achieved for all other funds 
through provisions of Massachusetts General Laws. 
 
At year end, appropriation balances lapse, except for certain unexpended capital items and 
encumbrances which will be honored during the subsequent year. 

3. Deposits and Investments ‐ Town (Excluding the OPEB Trust Fund) 

Massachusetts General Laws (MGL), Chapter 44, Section 55 place certain limitation on the nature 
of deposits and investments available to the Town. Deposits, including demand deposits, money 
markets, and certificates of deposits in any one financial institution, may not exceed 60% of the 
capital and surplus of such institution unless collateralized by the institution involved. 
Investments may be made in unconditionally guaranteed U.S. government obligations having 
maturities of a year or less from the date of purchase, or through repurchase agreements with 
maturities of no greater than 90 days in which the underlying securities consist of such 
obligations. Other allowable investments include certificates of deposits having a maturity date 
of up to 3 years from the date of purchase, national banks, and Massachusetts Municipal 
Depository Trust (MMDT). MMDT, which is an external investment pool overseen by the Treasurer 
of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts, meets the criteria established by GASB Statement No. 
79, Certain External Investment Pools and Pool Participants, to report its investments at amortized 
cost, which approximates the net asset value of $1.00 per share. MMDT has an average maturity 
of less than 1 year and is not rated or subject to custodial credit risk disclosure. MGL Chapter 44, 
Section 54 provides additional investment options for certain special revenue, trust, and OPEB 
funds. 
 
Deposits 
Custodial Credit Risk 
Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, the Town’s deposits may not be 
returned. The Town’s policies related to the custodial credit risk of deposits is that the Treasurer will 
review the financial institution’s financial statements and the background of the Advisor. Further, all 
securities held by a third‐party custodian will be held in the Town’s name and tax identification number. 
 
As of June 30, 2022, none of the Town’s bank balance of $48,865,956 was exposed to custodial credit 
risk as uninsured and uncollateralized. Additionally, $386,812 was on deposit with the 
Massachusetts Municipal Depository Trust, which is the state investment pool as authorized by 
Massachusetts General Laws, Chapter 29, section 38A. 
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Investments 
The following is a summary of the Town’s investments as of June 30, 2022: 
 

Investment Type Amount 

Market‐linked certificates of deposits $ 567,092       

Corporate bonds 6,023,692    

Corporate equities 2,002,687    

Fixed income mutual funds 1,428,199    

U.S. Treasury notes 4,446,870    

Federal agencies 1,446,167    

Total investments $ 15,914,707  
 

 
Custodial Credit Risk 
The custodial credit risk for investments is the risk that, in the event of the failure of the counterparty 
(e.g., broker‐dealer) to a transaction, the Town will not be able to recover the value of its investment 
or collateral securities that are in the possession of another party. Per the Town’s investment policy, 
the Treasurer will review the financial institution’s financial statements and the background of the 
Advisor. Further, all securities held by a third‐party custodian will be held in the Town’s name and tax 
identification number.  
 
As of June 30, 2022, the Town did not have any investments subject to custodial credit risk exposure 
as all assets were held in the Town’s name. 
 
Credit Risk – Investments in Debt Securities 
Generally, credit risk is the risk that an issuer of an investment will not fulfill its obligation to the 
holder of the investment. For short‐term investments that were purchased using surplus 
revenues, Massachusetts General Laws, Chapter 44, Section 55, limit the Town’s investments to the 
top rating issued by at least one nationally recognized statistical rating organization (NRSROs). The 
Town does not have formal investment policies related to credit risk. 
 
United States Treasury notes have an implied rating of Aaa. As of June 30, 2022, the credit quality 
ratings, as rated by Moody’s Investors Service, Inc. of the Town’s remaining debt securities were as 
follows:  
 

Investment Type Aa1 ‐ Aa3 A1 ‐ A3 Baa1 ‐ B3

Market‐linked certificates of deposits $ 567,092        $ ‐              $ ‐          $ ‐             $ ‐             $ 567,092     

Corporate bonds 6,023,692     314,646      48,513    2,915,689  2,744,844  ‐             

Fixed income mutual funds 1,428,199     1,123,700   ‐          ‐             ‐             304,499     

Federal agencies 1,446,167     1,446,167   ‐          ‐             ‐             ‐             

Total $ 9,465,150     $ 2,884,513   $ 48,513    $ 2,915,689  $ 2,744,844  $ 871,591     

Rating as of Year End

Amount Aaa Unrated
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Concentration of Credit Risk  
Concentration of credit risk is the risk of loss attributable to the magnitude of the Town’s investment 
in a single issuer. The Town places no limit on the amount that maybe invested in any one issuer. The 
Town does not have formal investment policies related to concentration of credit risk exposure. 
 
Investments issued or explicitly guaranteed by the U.S. government and investments in mutual funds, 
external investment pools, and other pooled investments are excluded from concentration credit 
disclosure. 
 
As of June 30, 2022, the Town did not have investments in any one issuer that exceeded 5% of 
total investments. 
 
Interest Rate Risk – Investments in Debt Securities 
Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in market interest rates will adversely affect the fair value of 
an investment. Generally, the longer the maturity of an investment, the greater the sensitivity of 
its fair value to changes in market interest rates. The Town’s investment policy states the Town 
will manage interest rate risk by managing duration in the account.  
 
Information about the sensitivity of the fair values of the Town’s investments to market interest 
rate fluctuations was as follows at June 30, 2022: 
 

Effective

Duration

Investment Type Amount Years

Market‐linked certificates of deposits $ 567,092       1.45       

Corporate bonds 6,023,692    9.45       

Fixed income mutual funds 1,428,199    2.50       

U.S. Treasury notes 4,446,870    7.06       

Federal agencies 1,446,167    8.32       

Total $ 13,912,020  
 

 
Foreign Currency Risk  
Foreign currency risk is the risk that changes in foreign exchange rates will adversely affect the 
fair value of an investment. The Town’s policy for foreign currency risk states the Town will not 
invest in any investment exposed to foreign currency risk. 
 
At June 30, 2022, none of the Town’s investments were exposed to foreign currency risk. 
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Fair Value 
The Town categorizes its fair value measurements within the fair value hierarchy established by 
Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 72, Fair  Value Measurement  and 
Application (GASB 72).  
 
The hierarchy is based on the valuation inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset or liability 
and give the highest priority to unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or 
liabilities (Level 1 measurements) and the lowest priority to unobservable inputs (Level 3 
measurements). The hierarchy categorizes the inputs to valuation techniques used for fair value 
measurement into three levels as follows:  
 

 Level 1 – inputs that reflect quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or 
liabilities that are accessible at the measurement date. 

 Level 2 – inputs other than quoted prices that are observable for an asset or liability either 
directly or indirectly, including inputs in markets that are not considered to be active. Because 
they must often be priced on the basis of transactions involving similar but not identical securities 
or do not trade with sufficient frequency, certain directly held securities are categorized as 
Level 2.  

 Level 3 – unobservable inputs based on the best information available, using assumptions in 
determining the fair value of investments and derivative instruments. 

 
In instances where inputs used to measure fair value fall into different levels in the fair value 
hierarchy, fair value measurements in their entirety are categorized based on the lowest level 
input that is significant to the valuation.  
 
The Town had the following fair value measurements as of June 30, 2022: 
 

Investment Type 

Investments by fair value level:

Market‐linked certificates of deposits $ 567,092      $ ‐            $ 567,092     

Corporate bonds 6,023,692   ‐            6,023,692  

Corporate equities 2,002,687   2,002,687 ‐             

Fixed income mutual funds 1,428,199   ‐            1,428,199  

U.S. Treasury notes 4,446,870   4,446,870 ‐             

Federal agencies 1,446,167   ‐            1,446,167  

Total $ 15,914,707 $ 6,449,557 $ 9,465,150  

Fair Value Measurements Using:

Quoted prices

in active Significant

markets for observable

identical assets inputs 

Amount (Level 1) (Level 2)
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Equity securities classified as Level 1 are valued using prices quoted in active markets for those 
securities. 
 
Debt securities classified as Level 2 are valued using either a bid evaluation or a matrix pricing 
technique. Bid evaluations may include market quotations, yields, maturities, call features, and 
ratings. Matrix pricing is used to value securities based on the security’s relationship to 
benchmark quote prices. Level 2 debt securities have non‐proprietary information that is readily 
available to market participants, from multiple independent sources, which are known to be 
actively involved in the market. 

4. Investments – OPEB Trust Fund 

The OPEB Trust Fund’s investments as of June 30, 2022 were fully invested in the State Retirees 
Benefits Trust Fund (SRBT) managed by Pension Reserves Investment Management (PRIM) 
Board.  
 

The net asset value (NAV) per share is the amount of net assets attributable to each share 
outstanding at the close of the period. The OPEB Trust Fund’s investment in SRBT is measured at 
NAV and is not subject to fair value level classification. There were no unfunded commitments at 
June 30, 2022, and the redemption frequency was monthly with a 30‐day redemption notice 
period. 

5. Property Taxes and Excises Receivable 

The Town bills and collects its property taxes on a quarterly basis following the January 1 
assessment. The due dates for those quarterly tax billings are August 1, November 1, February 1, 
and May 1. Property taxes that remain unpaid after the respective due dates are subject to 
penalties and interest charges.  
 

Based on the Town’s experience, most property taxes are collected during the year in which they are 
assessed. Liening of properties on which taxes remain unpaid generally occurs annually. The Town 
ultimately has the right to foreclose on all properties where the taxes remain unpaid. 
 

A statewide property tax limitation known as “Proposition 2 ½” limits the amount of increase in the 
property tax levy in any fiscal year. Generally, Proposition 2 ½ limits the total levy to an amount not 
greater than 2 ½% of the total assessed value of all taxable property within the Town. Secondly, the 
tax levy cannot increase by more than 2 ½ % of the prior year’s levy plus the taxes on property newly 
added to the tax rolls. The actual fiscal year 2022 tax levy reflected an excess capacity of $54,270. 
 
Motor vehicle excise taxes are assessed annually for every motor vehicle and trailer registered in 
the Commonwealth of Massachusetts. The Registry of Motor Vehicles annually calculates the value 
of all registered motor vehicles for the purpose of excise assessment. The amount of motor 
vehicle excise tax due is calculated using a fixed rate of $25 per $1,000 of value. 
 



 

36 

Boat excise taxes are assessed annually for all water vessels, including documented boats and 
ships, used or capable of being used for transportation on water. A boat excise is assessed by the 
community where the vessel is moored. July 1 is the assessing date for all vessels, and the boat 
excise due is calculated using a fixed rate of $10 per $1,000 of value. 
 
Property taxes and excise receivables at June 30, 2022 consisted of the following: 
 

Gross 

Amount

(fund basis)

Allowance 

for Doubtful 

Accounts

Current 

Portion

Long‐Term 

Portion

Real estate taxes $ 747,189      $ (101,481)     $ 645,708    $ ‐           

Personal property taxes 169,404      (134,606)     34,798      ‐           

Tax liens 639,867      (63,987)       ‐            575,880   

Other 53,281        (5,128)         48,153      ‐           

Total property taxes $ 1,609,741   $ (305,202)     $ 728,659    $ 575,880   

Motor vehicle excise $ 843,979      $ (365,931)     $ 478,048    

Boat excise 2,414          (2,414)         ‐            

Total excises $ 846,393      $ (368,345)     $ 478,048    
 

6. User Fees Receivables 

Receivables for user charges at June 30, 2022 consisted of the following: 
 

Governmental Funds Allowance 

Gross for Doubtful Net

Amount Accounts Amount

Ambulance $ 2,264,685   $ (1,115,840)  $ 1,148,845   

Business‐Type Funds Allowance 

Gross for Doubtful Net

Amount Accounts Amount

Sewer $ 1,769,141   $ (42,401)       $ 1,726,740   

Water 2,382,147   (57,861)       2,324,286   

Solid Waste 232,585      ‐              232,585      

Total $ 4,383,873   $ (100,262)     $ 4,283,611   
 

 

7. Intergovernmental Receivables 

This balance represents reimbursements requested from federal and state agencies for 
expenditures incurred in fiscal year 2022. 
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8. Capital Assets 

Capital asset activity for the year ended June 30, 2022 was as follows (in thousands): 
 

Governmental Activities

Capital assets, being depreciated:

Buildings and improvements $ 252,783   $ 167          $ ‐       $ 252,950   

Machinery, equipment, and furnishings 17,686     2,149      (114)     19,721     

Infrastructure 90,190     ‐           ‐       90,190     

Total capital assets, being depreciated 360,659   2,316      (114)     362,861   

Less accumulated depreciation for:

Buildings and improvements (88,769)    (6,865)     ‐       (95,634)    

Machinery, equipment, and furnishings (9,140)      (1,601)     114      (10,627)    

Infrastructure (56,551)    (1,891)     ‐       (58,442)    

Total accumulated depreciation (154,460)  (10,357)   114      (164,703)  

Total capital assets, being depreciated, net 206,199   (8,041)     ‐       198,158   

Capital assets, not being depreciated:

Land 18,623     4,590      ‐       23,213     

Works of art 96             ‐           ‐       96             

Construction in progress ‐            49            ‐       49             

Total capital assets, not being depreciated 18,719     4,639      ‐       23,358     

Governmental activities capital assets, net $ 224,918   $ (3,402)     $ ‐       $ 221,516   

Beginning 

Balance Increases Decreases

Ending 

Balance

 
 

Business‐Type Activities

Capital assets, being depreciated:

Buildings and improvements $ 569           $ 68            $ ‐       $ 637           

Machinery, equipment, and furnishings 2,298        336          ‐       2,634        

Infrastructure 127,147   3,416      ‐       130,563   

Total capital assets, being depreciated 130,014   3,820      ‐       133,834   

Less accumulated depreciation for:

Buildings and improvements (175)          (25)           ‐       (200)          

Machinery, equipment, and furnishings (1,485)      (99)           ‐       (1,584)      

Infrastructure (59,605)    (2,489)     ‐       (62,094)    

Total accumulated depreciation (61,265)    (2,613)     ‐       (63,878)    

Total capital assets, being depreciated, net 68,749     1,207      ‐       69,956     

Capital assets, not being depreciated:

Land 4,136        ‐           ‐       4,136        

Construction in progress 2,235        1,972      (2,235)  1,972        

Total capital assets, not being depreciated 6,371        1,972      (2,235)  6,108        

Business‐type activities capital assets, net $ 75,120     $ 3,179      $ (2,235)  $ 76,064     

Beginning 

Balance Increases Decreases

Ending 

Balance
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Depreciation expense was charged to functions of the Town as follows: 
 

Governmental Activities

General government $ 384,643      

Public safety 1,061,505   

Education 5,485,398   

Public works 2,382,145   

Health and human services 234,113      

Culture and recreation 809,577      

Total governmental activities $ 10,357,381 
 

 
Business‐Type Activities

Sewer $ 443,429      

Water 2,169,359   

Total business‐type activities $ 2,612,788   
 

9. Deferred Outflows of Resources 

Deferred outflows of resources represent the consumption of net assets by the Town that is applicable 
to future reporting periods. Deferred outflows of resources have a positive effect on net position, 
similar to assets. Deferred outflows of resources related to pension and OPEB, in accordance with 
GASB Statements No. 68 and 75, are more fully discussed in the corresponding pension and OPEB 
notes. 

10. Accrued Liabilities 

Accrued liabilities in governmental funds represent accrued payroll and related benefits. Accrued 
liabilities in government‐wide financial statements also include accrued interest on long‐term 
debt. 

11. Notes Payable 

The following summarizes activity in notes payable during fiscal year 2022: 
 

Balance Balance

Beginning New End of

Purpose of Year Issues Maturities Year

Water Mains $ 1,200,000    $ ‐                $ (1,200,000)    $ ‐                

     Total $ 1,200,000    $ ‐                $ (1,200,000)    $ ‐                
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12. Unearned Revenue 

Unearned revenue represents grant funds received by the Town from the American Rescue Plan 
Act (ARPA). These funds will be used for COVID‐19 related expenditures or negative economic 
impacts of COVID‐19 over the next several years. 

13. Long‐Term Debt 

General Obligation Bonds and Loans 
The Town issues general obligation bonds and direct borrowings to provide funds for the acquisition 
and construction of major capital facilities. General obligation bonds and direct borrowings 
outstanding are as follows: 
 

Amount

Governmental Activities Serial Outstanding
Original Maturities Interest as of

General Obligation Bonds Issue Through Rate(s) % 6/30/22

Public offerings:

General obligation refunding 2003 $ 3,926,500   06/30/22 2.00 ‐ 4.00% $ 370,000         

General obligation refunding 2004 2,325,000   06/30/22 2.00 ‐ 4.00% 262,000         

Keller‐Sullivan School 7,300,000   03/15/25 3.25 ‐ 5.50% 1,079,001      

General obligation refunding 2015 3,135,000   03/15/27 2.00 ‐ 4.00% 1,165,000      

General obligation refunding 2016 7,310,000   03/01/28 4.00% 4,565,000      

High School construction 43,990,000 06/15/38 4.125 ‐ 5.00% 34,700,000    

General obligation library bond 9,150,000   05/15/39 3.00 ‐ 5.00% 7,770,000      

General obligation municipal purpose 2,443,500   05/15/43 2.50 ‐ 5.00% 2,200,000      

General obligation 2021 technology 1,206,000   05/01/41 2.00 ‐ 5.00% 1,105,000      

General obligation 2021 fire trucks 686,900      05/01/41 2.00 ‐ 5.00% 630,000         

General obligation 2022 land acquisition 2,965,000   05/15/42 3.25 ‐ 5.00% 2,965,000      

General obligation 2022 municipal building 1,320,000   05/15/32 3.25 ‐ 5.00% 1,320,000      

General obligation 2022 school drains 380,000      05/15/32 3.25 ‐ 5.00% 380,000         

     Total Governmental Activities $ 58,511,001    
 

 



 

40 

Business‐Type Activities Amount
Serial Outstanding

Original Maturities Interest as of
General Obligation Bonds Issue Through Rate(s) % 6/30/22

Public offerings:

Water refunding 2004 $ 2,325,000   06/30/22 2.00 ‐ 4.00% $ 145,000         

Sewer refunding 2004 2,325,000   06/30/22 2.00 ‐ 4.00% 96,000           

Water mains 3,000,000   03/15/25 4.26% 443,000         

Water refunding 2015 1,857,000   03/15/27 2.00 ‐ 4.00% 910,000         

Sewer refunding 2015 1,928,000   03/15/27 2.00 ‐ 4.00% 760,000         

Water line replacement 5,000,000   06/15/28 4.00 ‐ 5.00% 2,320,000      

Water infrastructure improvements 4,541,500   05/15/33 2.50 ‐ 5.00% 3,235,000      

Water 2021 ‐ Well Station 3 1,022,400   05/01/41 2.00 ‐ 5.00% 990,000         

Sewer 2021 ‐ Beaver St 1,444,700   05/01/41 2.00 ‐ 5.00% 1,395,000      

     Total public offerings 10,294,000    

Loans ‐ Direct Borrowings

Water treatment facility DW‐02‐12 5,889,794   08/01/24 2.50 ‐ 5.25% 1,116,154      

MCWT  DW‐19‐02 12,579,500 01/15/41 2.00% 11,950,525    

     Total loans ‐ direct borrowings 13,066,679    

     Total Business‐Type Activities $ 23,360,679    
 

Future Debt Service 
The annual payments to retire all general obligation bonds and loans outstanding as of June 30, 2022 
were as follows: 

Governmental

Year

2023 $ 4,524,000      $ 2,411,453      

2024 4,222,000      2,216,071      

2025 4,140,001      2,034,966      

2026 3,855,000      1,889,591      

2027 3,605,000      1,723,691      

2028‐2032 14,835,000    6,553,737      

2033‐2037 15,385,000    3,431,460      

2038‐2042 7,800,000      516,561          

2043 145,000          5,256               

Total $ 58,511,001    $ 20,782,786    

Bonds ‐ Public Offerings

Principal Interest
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The General Fund has been designated as the source to repay the governmental‐type general 
obligation long‐term debt outstanding as of June 30, 2022. 
 

Business‐Type

Year

2023 $ 1,381,000      $ 392,261          $ 988,252           $ 244,586     

2024 1,388,000      332,426          1,002,623        226,431     

2025 1,250,000      275,756          1,012,204        207,562     

2026 1,110,000      225,331          628,975           201,272     

2027 925,000          176,831          628,975           188,693     

2028‐2032 2,760,000      411,405          3,144,875        754,770     

2033‐2037 880,000          106,881          3,144,875        440,364     

2038‐2041 600,000          25,400            2,515,900        125,792     

Total $ 10,294,000    $ 1,946,291      $ 13,066,679     $ 2,389,470  

Interest Principal Interest

Bonds Payable Loans ‐ Direct Borrowings

Principal

 
 

Changes in Long‐Term Liabilities 
During the year ended June 30, 2022, the following changes occurred in long‐term liabilities (in 
thousands): 
 

Governmental Activities

Bonds payable:

Public offerings $ 58,234    $ 4,665    $ (4,388)    $ 58,511    $ (4,524)  $ 53,987    

Unamortized premium 1,131      175       (79)         1,227      (92)       1,135      

Subtotal 59,365    4,840    (4,467)    59,738    (4,616)  55,122    

Compensated absences l iability 1,661      ‐        (87)         1,574      (79)       1,495      

Net pension liabil ity 38,825    ‐        (10,404) 28,421    ‐       28,421    

Net OPEB l iability 68,669    5,308    ‐         73,977    ‐       73,977    

Totals $ 168,520  $ 10,148  $ (14,958) $ 163,710  $ (4,695)  $ 159,015  

Business‐Type Activities

Bonds payable:

Public offerings $ 11,791    $ ‐        $ (1,497)    $ 10,294    $ (1,381)  $ 8,913      

Loans payable (direct borrowings) 14,041    ‐        (974)       13,067    (988)     12,079    

Subtotal 25,832    ‐        (2,471)    23,361    (2,369)  20,992    

Compensated absences l iability 95            3            ‐         98            (5)          93            

Net pension liabil ity 551          ‐        (178)       373          ‐       373          

Net OPEB l iability 974          ‐        (4)            970          ‐       970          

       Totals $ 27,452    $ 3            $ (2,653)    $ 24,802    $ (2,374)  $ 22,428    

6/30/22

Equals

Total Less Long‐Term

ReductionsBalance Additions 6/30/22 Portion

Beginning Balance Current Portion

Balance Additions 6/30/22 Portion 6/30/22Reductions

Beginning Balance Current Portion

Total Less Long‐Term

Equals
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14. Deferred Inflows of Resources 

Deferred inflows of resources represent the acquisition of net assets by the Town that apply to future 
reporting periods. Deferred inflows of resources have a negative effect on net position, similar to 
liabilities. Deferred inflows of resources related to pension and OPEB, in accordance with GASB 
Statements No. 69 and 75, will be recognized as expense in future years and are more fully 
described in the corresponding pension and OPEB notes. Unavailable revenues are reported in the 
governmental funds Balance Sheet in connection with receivables for which revenues are not 
considered available to liquidate liabilities of the current year. 

15. Governmental Funds – Fund Balances 

The Town's fund balances at June 30, 2022 were comprised of the following: 
 

Nonmajor Total

General Federal Grants

Fund Fund Funds Funds

Nonspendable

Permanent funds $ ‐                 $ ‐                $ 508,930 $ 508,930        

Total Nonspendable ‐                 ‐                508,930        508,930        

Restricted

Special revenue funds:

Extracurricular athletics ‐                 ‐                830,300        830,300        

Transportation ‐                 ‐                1,330,251    1,330,251     

Pre‐kindergarten ‐                 ‐                1,163,399    1,163,399     

Circuit breaker ‐                 ‐                3,073,927    3,073,927     

Lifelong Learning ‐                 ‐                504,024        504,024        

School lunch ‐                 ‐                892,315        892,315        

Parking meter receipts ‐                 ‐                489,384        489,384        

Town use of facil ities ‐                 ‐                188,897        188,897        

Wetlands protection ‐                 ‐                207,876        207,876        

Ambulance receipts ‐                 ‐                281,341        281,341        

40B Franklin heights infrastructure ‐                 ‐                164,000        164,000        

Community preservation ‐                 ‐                1,377,084    1,377,084     

Other ‐                 ‐                1,786,878    1,786,878     

Capital projects funds ‐                 ‐                1,784,527 1,784,527     

Permanent trust funds ‐                 ‐                1,626,427 1,626,427     

Insurance reserves 1,436,082    ‐                ‐                 1,436,082     

Total Restricted 1,436,082    ‐                15,700,630  17,136,712   

Committed

Reserve for continuing resolutions 5,300,139 ‐                ‐                 5,300,139     

Capital improvement stabilization funds 3,554,135    ‐                ‐                 3,554,135     

MECC stabilization 887,694        ‐                ‐                 887,694        

Total Committed 9,741,968    ‐                ‐                 9,741,968     

Assigned

General government 52,905          ‐                ‐                 52,905           

Public safety 27,335          ‐                ‐                 27,335           

Education 575,040        ‐                ‐                 575,040        

Public works 373,378        ‐                ‐                 373,378        

Health and human services 2,000            ‐                ‐                 2,000             

Culture and recreation 1,000            ‐                ‐                 1,000             

Insurance and benefits 4,725            ‐                ‐                 4,725             

Total Assigned 1,036,383    ‐                ‐                 1,036,383     

Unassigned
General Fund 6,822,319    ‐                ‐                 6,822,319     

General stabilization fund 6,442,797    ‐                ‐                 6,442,797     

Budget stabil ization fund 2,004,900    ‐                ‐                 2,004,900     

Federal  grants fund ‐                 (318,275)     ‐                 (318,275)       

Total Unassigned 15,270,016  (318,275)     ‐                 14,951,741   

Total Fund Balance $ 27,484,449  $ (318,275)     $ 16,209,560  $ 43,375,734   

Governmental Governmental
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16. Restricted Net Position 

The Town’s restricted net position at June 30, 2022 was comprised of the following: 
 

Governmental

Purpose Activities

Affordable housing trust $ 1,031,117          

Sewer l ift stations trust 542,247             

Ray memorial l ibrary trust 145,754             

Other trusts 416,240             

Extracurricular athletics 830,300             

Transportation 1,330,251          

Pre‐kindergarten 1,163,399          

Circuit breaker 3,073,927          

Lifelong Learning 504,024             

School lunch 892,315             

Parking meter receipts 489,384             

Town use of facil ities 188,897             

Wetlands protection 207,876             

Ambulance receipts 281,341             

40B Franklin heights infrastructure 164,000             

Community preservation 1,377,084          

Other special revenue funds 1,786,878          

Total $ 14,425,034        
 

17. Transfers 

The Town reports interfund transfers between various funds. Most transfers result from budgetary or 
statutory actions, whereby funds are moved to accomplish various expenditure purposes. Interfund 
transfers for fiscal year 2022 were as follows: 

 

Governmental Funds:

General Fund $ ‐            $ 96,021      

Nonmajor Governmental Funds:

Special revenue funds 104,900    ‐            

Expendable trust funds 4,004        ‐            

Proprietary Funds:

Sewer Fund ‐            1,716        

Water Fund ‐            11,167      

 Total $ 108,904    $ 108,904    

Transfers OutTransfers In

 
 

Of the transfer out of the General Fund, $77,017 was transferred to the bond premiums special 
revenue fund. 
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18. Norfolk County Retirement System 

The Town follows the provisions of GASB Statement No. 68, Accounting and Financial Reporting 
for Pensions – an amendment of GASB Statement No. 27, with respect to employees’ retirement 
funds. 
 
Plan Description 
Substantially all employees of the Town (except teachers and administrators under contract 
employed by the School Department) are members of the Norfolk County Retirement System (the 
System), a cost‐sharing, multiple‐employer public employee retirement system (PERS). Eligible 
employees must participate in the System. The pension plan provides pension benefits, deferred 
allowances, and death and disability benefits. Chapter 32 of Massachusetts General Laws establishes 
the authority of the System, contribution percentages and benefits paid. The System Retirement 
Board does not have the authority to amend benefit provisions. Additional information is disclosed 
in the System’s annual financial reports publicly available from the System located at 
480 Neponset Street, Canton, Massachusetts 02021. 
 
Participant Contributions 
Participants contribute a set percentage of their gross regular compensation annually. Employee 
contribution percentages are specified in Chapter 32 of Massachusetts General Laws. The 
employee’s individual contribution percentage is determined by their date of entry into the 
System. In addition, all employees hired on or after January 1, 1979 contribute an additional 2% 
on all gross regular compensation over the rate of $30,000 per year. The percentages are as 
follows: 

Before January 1, 1975 5%

January 1, 1975 ‐ December 31, 1983 7%

January 1, 1984 ‐ June 30, 1996 8%

Beginning July 1, 1996 9%  
 
For those members entering the System on or after April 2, 2012 in Group 1, the contribution rate will 
be reduced to 6% when at least 30 years of creditable service has been attained. 
 
Participant Retirement Benefits 
A retirement allowance consists of two parts: an annuity and a pension. A member’s accumulated 
total deductions and a portion of the interest they generate constitute the annuity. The difference 
between the total retirement allowance and the annuity is the pension. The average retirement 
benefit is approximately 80‐85% pension and 15‐20% annuity.  
 
The System provides for retirement allowance benefits up to a maximum of 80% of a member's 
highest 3‐year average annual rate of regular compensation for those hired prior to April 2, 2012 
and the highest five‐year average annual rate of regular compensation for those first becoming 
members of the System on or after that date. However, per Chapter 176 of the Acts of 2011, for 
members who retire on or after April 2, 2012, if in the 5 years of creditable service immediately 
preceding retirement, the difference in the annual rate of regular compensation between any 
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2 consecutive years exceeds 100 percent, the normal yearly amount of the retirement allowance 
shall be based on the average annual rate of regular compensation received by the member during 
the period of 5 consecutive years preceding retirement. Benefit payments are based upon a 
member's age, length of creditable service, level of compensation and group classification. 
 
There are four classes of membership in the retirement system, but one of these classes, Group 3, 
is made up exclusively of the Massachusetts State Police. The other three classes are as follows:  
 

 Group 1 – General employees, including clerical, administrative, technical, and all other 
employees not otherwise classified.  

 Group 2 – Certain specified hazardous duty positions.  

 Group 4 – Police officers, firefighters, and other specified hazardous positions.  
 
A retirement allowance may be received at any age, upon attaining 20 years of service. The plan 
also provides for retirement at age 55 if the participant was a member prior to January 1, 1978, 
with no minimum vesting requirements. If the participant was a member on or after January 1, 
1978 and a member of Groups 1 or 2, then a retirement allowance may be received if the 
participant (1) has at least 10 years of creditable service, (2) is age 55, (3) voluntarily left Town 
employment on or after that date, and (4) left accumulated annuity deductions in the fund. 
Members of Group 4 have no minimum vesting requirements, however, must be at least age 55. 
Groups 2 and 4 require that participants perform the duties of the group position for at least 12 
months immediately prior to retirement. 
 
A participant who became a member on or after April 2, 2012 is eligible for a retirement 
allowance upon 10 years creditable service and reaching ages 60 or 55 for Groups 1 and 2, 
respectively. Participants in Group 4 must be at least age 55. Groups 2 and 4 require that 
participants perform the duties of the group position for at least 12 months immediately prior to 
retirement. 
 
Methods of Payment 
A member may elect to receive his or her retirement allowance in one of three forms of payment 
as follows: 
 

 Option A – Total annual allowance, payable in monthly installments, commencing at 
retirement and terminating at the member’s death. 

 Option B – A reduced annual allowance, payable in monthly installments, commencing at 
retirement and terminating at the death of the member, provided however, that if the total 
amount of the annuity portion received by the member is less than the amount of his or her 
accumulated deductions, including interest, the difference or balance of his accumulated 
deductions will be paid in a lump sum to the retiree’s beneficiary or beneficiaries of choice. 

 Option C – A reduced annual allowance, payable in monthly installments, commencing at 
retirement. At the death of the retired employee, 2/3 of the allowance is payable to the member’s 
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designated beneficiary (who may be the spouse, or former spouse who has not remarried, child, 
parent, sister, or brother of the employee) for the life of the beneficiary. For members who 
retired on or after January 12, 1988, if the beneficiary pre‐deceases the retiree, the benefit 
payable increases (or “pops up” to Option A) based on the factor used to determine the 
Option C benefit at retirement. For members who retired prior to January 12, 1988, if the System 
has accepted Section 288 of Chapter 194 of the Acts of 1998 and the beneficiary pre‐deceases 
the retiree, the benefit payable “pops up” to Option A in the same fashion. The Option C 
became available to accidental disability retirees on November 7, 1996.  

 
Participant Refunds 
Employees who resign from service and who are not eligible to receive a retirement allowance 
are entitled to request a refund of their accumulated total deductions. Members voluntarily 
withdrawing with at least 10 years of service or involuntarily withdrawing, receive 100% of the 
regular interest that has accrued on those accumulated total deductions. Members voluntarily 
withdrawing with less than 10 years of service get credited interest each year at a rate of 3%. 
 
Employer Contributions 
Employers are required to contribute at actuarially determined rates as accepted by the Public 
Employee Retirement Administration Commission (PERAC). 
 
The Town’s contribution to the System for the year ended June 30, 2022 was $6,693,600 which was 
equal to its annual required contribution. 
 
Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 
For purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows of resources and deferred 
(inflows) of resources related to pension, and pension expense, information about the fiduciary 
net position of the System and additions to/deductions from the System’s fiduciary net position have 
been determined on the same basis as they are reported by the System. For this purpose, benefit 
payments (including refunds of employee contributions) are recognized when due and payable in 
accordance with benefit terms. Investments are reported at fair value. 
 
Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred (Inflows) of 
Resources Related to Pension 
At June 30, 2022, the Town reported a liability of $28,793,166 for its proportionate share of the net 
pension liability. The net pension liability was measured as of December 31, 2021, and the total 
pension liability used to calculate the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation 
as of January 1, 2022. At June 30, 2022, the Town’s proportion was 7.8127%, which was an increase 
of 0.1035% from its proportion measured as of December 31, 2020. 
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For the year ended June 30, 2022, the Town recognized pension expense of $2,764,756. In addition, 
the Town reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to 
pension from the following sources: 
 

Deferred 

Outflows of 

Resources

Deferred 

Inflows of 

Resources

$ 2,912,401     $ ‐               

1,995,738     12,649,274   

803,036        ‐               

Total $ 5,711,175     $ 12,649,274   

Differences between expected and actual experience

Net difference between projected and actual earnings on 

pension plan investments

Changes in proportion and differences between employer 

contributions and proportionate share of contributions

 
 
Amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to 
pension will be recognized as increases (decreases) in pension expense as follows: 

 

Year Ended June 30:

2023 $ (112,494)     

2024 (2,992,113)  

2025 (1,878,431)  

2026 (1,955,061)  

Total $ (6,938,099)  
 

 
Actuarial Assumptions 
The total pension liability was determined in the actuarial valuation, using the following actuarial 
assumptions, applied to all periods included in the measurement: 

 

Valuation date January 1, 2022

Inflation 3.00%

Projected salary increases 3.5% to 5.5%

Investment rate of return 7.75%

Cost of living increases

Remaining amortization period

3% of the first $18,000 of retirement 

Till fiscal 2029
 

 
Mortality rates were based on the RP‐2014 Blue Collar Mortality Table with Scale MP‐2014, fully 
generational. 
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Target Allocations 
The long‐term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was selected from a best 
estimate range determined using the building block approach. Under this method, an expected 
future real return range (expected returns, net of pension plan investment expense and inflation) 
is calculated separately for each asset class. These ranges are combined to produce the long‐
term expected rate of return by weighting the expected future real rates of return net of 
investment expenses by the target asset allocation percentage and by adding expected inflation. 
The target allocation and best estimates of arithmetic real rates of return for each major class 
are summarized in the following table. 
 

Long‐term

Target Expected

Asset Real Rate
Asset Class Allocation of Return

Domestic equity 30.5% 7.0%

International equities 15.5% 7.7%

Fixed income 20.5% 4.3%

Real estate 9.5% 6.9%

Private equity 10.0% 9.4%

Hedge funds 11.5% 8.6%

Real assets 2.5% 8.9%

Total 100.00%
 

 
Discount Rate 
The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability as of December 31, 2021 was 7.75%. The 
projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that the plan member 
contributions will be made at the current contribution rate and that employer contributions will 
be made at contractually required rates, actuarially determined. Under Chapter 32 of MGL, 
employers are required to make the necessary contributions such that the pension plan reaches 
full funding status by 2040. Based on those assumptions, the pension plan’s fiduciary net position 
was projected to be available to make all projected future benefit payments to current active and 
inactive plan members. Therefore, the long‐term expected rate of return on pension plan 
investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total 
pension liability. 
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Sensitivity of the Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate 
The following presents the Town’s proportionate share of the System’s net pension liability calculated 
using the discount rate of 7.75%, as well as what the Town’s proportionate share of the net pension 
liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is one percentage‐point lower or 
one percentage‐point higher than the current rate: 
 

1%

Decrease

(6.75%)

Current 

Discount 

Rate 

(7.75%)

1%

Increase

(8.75%)

 $    47,920,738  $    28,793,166  $    20,475,102 
 

 
Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position 
Detailed information about the pension plan’s fiduciary net position is available in the System’s 
separately issued financial report. 

19. Massachusetts Teachers’ Retirement System (MTRS) 

Plan Description 
The Massachusetts Teachers’ Retirement System (MTRS) is a public employee retirement system 
(PERS) that administers a cost‐sharing, multi‐employer defined benefit plan, as defined in 
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 67,  Financial  Reporting  for 
Pension Plans. MTRS is managed by the Commonwealth of Massachusetts on behalf of municipal 
teachers and municipal teacher retirees. The Commonwealth of Massachusetts is a nonemployer 
contributor and is responsible for all contributions and future benefit requirements of the MTRS. The 
MTRS covers certified teachers in cities (except Boston), towns, regional school districts, charter 
schools, educational collaboratives, and Quincy College. The MTRS is part of the Commonwealth of 
Massachusetts’s reporting entity and does not issue a stand‐alone audited financial report.  
 
Management of MTRS is vested in the Massachusetts Teachers’ Retirement Board (MTRB), which 
consists of seven members—two elected by the MTRS members, one who is chosen by the six other 
MTRB members, the State Treasurer (or their designee), the State Auditor (or their designee), a 
member appointed by the Governor, and the Commissioner of Education (or their designee), who 
serves ex‐officio as the Chairman of the MTRB. 
 
Benefits Provided 
MTRS provides retirement, disability, survivor, and death benefits to members and their beneficiaries. 
Massachusetts General Laws (MGL) establishes uniform benefit and contribution requirements for 
all contributory PERS. These requirements provide for superannuation retirement allowance 
benefits up to a maximum of 80% of a member’s highest 3‐year average annual rate of regular 
compensation. For employees hired after April 1, 2012, retirement allowances are calculated on 
the basis of the last 5 years or any 5 consecutive years, whichever is greater in terms of 
compensation. Benefit payments are based upon a member’s age, length of creditable service, and 



 

50 

group creditable service, and group classification. The authority for amending these provisions rests 
with the Legislature. 
 
Members become vested after 10 years of creditable service. A superannuation retirement 
allowance may be received upon the completion of 20 years of creditable service or upon reaching 
the age of 55 with 10 years of service. Normal retirement for most employees occurs at age 65. 
Most employees who joined the system after April 1, 2012 cannot retire prior to age 60.  
 
The MTRS’ funding policies have been established by Chapter 32 of the MGL. The Legislature has the 
authority to amend these policies. The annuity portion of the MTRS retirement allowance is 
funded by employees, who contribute a percentage of their regular compensation. Costs of 
administering the plan are funded out of plan assets. 
 
Contributions 
Member contributions for MTRS vary depending on the most recent date of membership: 

 

Membership Date  % of Compensation 
   

Prior to 1975  5% of regular compensation 
1975 to 1983  7% of regular compensation 
1984 to 6/30/1996  8% of regular compensation 
7/1/1996 to present  9% of regular compensation 
7/1/2001 to present  11% of regular compensation (for teachers hired 

after 7/1/01 and those accepting provisions of 
Chapter 114 of the Acts of 2000) 

1979 to present  An additional 2% of regular compensation in 
excess of $30,000 

 
In addition, members who join MTRS on or after April 2, 2012 will have their withholding rates 
reduced to 8% for those participating in retirement, otherwise the withholdings are reduced to 
6% plus 2% on earnings over $30,000 a year after achieving 30 years of creditable service. 
 
Actuarial Assumptions 
The net pension liability for the June 30, 2021 measurement date was determined by an actuarial 
valuation as of January 1, 2021 rolled forward to June 30, 2021. This valuation used the following 
assumptions: 
 

 (a) 7.00% (changed from 7.15%) investment rate of return, (b) 3.50% interest rate credited to 
the annuity savings fund and (c) 3.00% cost of living increase on the first $13,000 per year. 

 Salary increases are based on analyses of past experience but range from 4.00% to 7.50% 
depending on length of service. 

 Experience study is dated July 21, 2014 and encompasses the period January 1, 2006 to 
December 31, 2011, updated to reflect post‐retirement mortality from 2012 ‐ 2020. 
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 Mortality rates were as follows: 

 Pre‐retirement ‐ reflects Pub‐2010 Teachers Employees mortality table (headcount 
weighted) projected generationally with Scale MP‐2020 (gender distinct). 

 Post‐retirement ‐ reflects Pub‐2010 Teachers Retirees mortality table (headcount 
weighted) projected generationally with Scale MP‐2020 (gender distinct). 

 Disability – assumed to be in accordance with Pub‐2010 Teachers Retirees mortality table 
(headcount weighted) projected generationally with Scale MP‐2020 (gender distinct). 

 
Target Allocations 
Investment assets of the MTRS are with the Pension Reserves Investment Trust (PRIT) Fund. The 
long‐term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a building‐
block method in which best‐estimate ranges of expected future rates of return are developed for 
each major asset class. These ranges are combined to produce the long‐term expected rate of 
return by weighting the expected future rates of return by the target asset allocation percentage. 
Best estimates of geometric rates of return for each major asset class included in the PRIT Fund’s 
target asset allocation as of June 30, 2021 are summarized in the following table: 
 

Target Long‐Term Expected

Asset Class Allocation Real Rate of Return

Global equity 39.00% 4.80%

Core fixed income 15.00% 0.30%

Private equity 13.00% 7.80%

Portfolio completion strategies 11.00% 2.90%

Real estate 10.00% 3.70%

Value added fixed income 8.00% 3.90%

Timber/natural resources 4.00% 4.30%

Total 100.00%
 

 
Discount Rate 
The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.00%. The projection of cash flows 
used to determine the discount rate assumed that plan member contributions will be made at 
the current contribution rates and the Commonwealth of Massachusetts’ contributions will be 
made at rates equal to the difference between actuarially determined contribution rates and the 
member rates. Based on those assumptions, the net position was projected to be available to make 
all projected future benefit payments of current plan members. Therefore, the long‐term expected 
rate of return on pension plan investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments 
to determine the total pension liability. 
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Sensitivity Analysis 
The following illustrates the sensitivity of the collective net pension liability to changes in the 
discount rate. In particular, the table presents the MTRS collective net pension liability assuming 
it was calculated using a single discount rate that is one‐percentage‐point lower or one‐percentage‐
point higher than the current discount rate (amounts in thousands): 
 

1%

Decrease

(6.00%)

 1%

Increase

(8.00%)

29,687,706$    22,706,876$    16,882,184$    

Current

Discount

Rate 

(7.00%)

 
 
Special Funding Situation 
The Commonwealth of Massachusetts is a nonemployer contributor and is required by statute to 
make all actuarially determined employer contributions on behalf of the member employers. 
Therefore, these employers are considered to be in a special funding situation as defined by 
Government Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 68, Accounting and Financial Reporting 
for Pensions (GASB 68), and the Commonwealth of Massachusetts is a nonemployer contributing 
entity in MTRS. Since the employers do not contribute directly to MTRS, there is no net pension 
liability to recognize for each employer. 
 
Town Proportions 
In fiscal year 2021 (the most recent measurement period), the Town’s proportionate share of the 
MTRS’ collective net pension liability was $125,802,076 based on a proportionate share of 
0.554026%. As required by GASB 68, the Town has recognized its portion of the Commonwealth 
of Massachusetts’s contribution of $9,687,057 as both a revenue and expenditure on the 
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances, and its portion of the 
collective pension expense of approximately $10,095,093 as both a revenue and expense on the 
Statement of Activities. 

20. Other Post‐Employment Benefits  

GASB Statement No. 74, Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefit Plans Other Than Pension 
Plans  (OPEB), replaces the requirements of GASB Statement No. 43, Financial  Reporting  for 
Postemployment Benefit Plans Other  Than Pension Plans. This applies if a trust fund has been 
established to fund future OPEB costs. In fiscal year 2010, the Town established a single‐employer 
defined benefit OPEB Trust Fund to provide funding for future employee health care costs. The 
OPEB Trust Fund does not issue a stand‐alone financial report. 
 
GASB Statement No. 75, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefits Other 
Than Pensions, replaces the requirements of GASB Statement No. 45, Accounting and Financial 
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Reporting  by  Employers  for  Postemployment  Benefits  Other  Than  Pensions. This statement 
establishes standards for recognizing and measuring liabilities, deferred outflows of resources, 
deferred (inflows) of resources, and expense/expenditures. This statement identifies the methods 
and assumptions that are required to be used to project benefit payments, discounted projected 
benefit payments to their actuarial present value, and attribute that present value to periods of 
employee service. 
 
All the following OPEB disclosures are based on a measurement date of June 30, 2022. 
 
General Information about the OPEB Plan 
Plan Description 
The Town provides post‐employment healthcare benefits for retired employees through the Town’s 
plan. The Town provides health insurance coverage through Tufts Health Plan. The benefits, benefit 
levels, employee contributions, and employer contributions are governed by Chapter 32 of 
Massachusetts General Laws. 
 
Benefits Provided 
The Town provides medical and prescription drug insurance to retirees and their covered 
dependents. All active employees who retire from the Town and meet the eligibility criteria will 
receive these benefits. 
 
Funding Policy 
The Town’s funding policy includes financing the implicit subsidy on a pay‐as‐you‐go basis, as 
required by statute. Additional contributions are based on annual budget limitations/ 
authorizations. 
 
Plan Membership 
At June 30, 2022, the following employees were covered by the benefit terms: 
 

Inactive employees or beneficiaries

currently receiving benefit payments 661      

Active employees 1,121   

Total 1,782   
 

 
Investments 
The OPEB Trust Fund’s assets consist of investments held by the Pension Reserves Investment Trust. 
 
Rate of Return 
For the year ended June 30, 2022, the annual money‐weighted rate of return on investments, net 
of investment expense, was (4.78%). The money‐weighted rate of return expresses investment 
performance, net of investment expense, adjusted for the changing amounts actually invested. 
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Actuarial Assumptions and Other Inputs 
The net OPEB liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of July 1, 2021, using the 
following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in the measurement, unless 
otherwise specified: 
 

Investment rate of return 7.50%, net of OPEB plan investment expense

Discount rate 7.50%

Healthcare cost trend rates 4.5% for 2021 and future periods

Participation rate 95% of future retiree teachers are assumed to 

participate in the retiree medical plan, 70% of 

future non‐teacher retirees are expected to 

participate in the retiree medical plan, and 75% 

of future retirees are expected to elect life 

Funding assumption Starting in year 2032, the Town will utilize 

funds (approximately $7 million) that were 

previously utilized for funding the net pension 

liability to fund the net OPEB liability, annually.

Retirees' share of benefit‐related costs 32%  
 
Mortality rates were based on the SOA Pub‐2010 Public Retirement Plans Mortality Tables specific to 
the Group, Pre‐retirement versus Post, Disabled and Beneficiaries, with Scale MP‐2019 improvements 
until 2025. 
 
Target Allocations 
The long‐term expected rate of return on OPEB plan investments was determined using a building‐
block method in which best‐estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected 
returns, net of investment expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class. These 
ranges are combined to produce the long‐term expected rate of return by weighting the expected 
future real rates of return by the target asset allocation percentage and by adding expected 
inflation. Best estimate of arithmetic real rate of return as of June 30, 2022 is 7.50%. 

 

Contributions 
In addition to the implicit subsidy contribution, the Town’s policy is to contribute the amounts 
provided annually by the budget.  
 
Discount Rate 
The discount rate used to measure the net OPEB liability was 7.50%. The projection of cash flows 
used to determine the discount rate assumed that contributions from plan members will be made 
at the current contribution rate. 
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Based on those assumptions, the OPEB plan fiduciary net position was projected to be available to 
make all projected future benefit payments of current plan members. 
 
Net OPEB Liability 
The components of the net OPEB liability, measured as of June 30, 2022, were as follows: 
 

Total OPEB liability $ 85,452,216    

Plan fiduciary net position 10,505,734    

Net OPEB liability $ 74,946,482    

Plan fiduciary net position as a 

percentage of the total OPEB liability 12.29%  
 

The fiduciary net position has been determined on the same basis used by the OPEB plan. For this 
purpose, the plan recognizes benefit payments when due and payable. 
 
Changes in the Net OPEB Liability 
The following summarizes the changes in the net OPEB liability for the past year: 
 

Plan

Total OPEB Fiduciary Net OPEB

Liability Net Position Liability

(a) (b) (a) ‐ (b)

Balance, beginning of year $ 79,448,221    $ 9,805,609     $ 69,642,612    

Changes for the year:

Service cost 2,834,817      ‐                2,834,817      

Interest 6,064,612      ‐                6,064,612      

Contributions ‐ employer ‐                 3,871,679     (3,871,679)     

Net investment income ‐                 (468,875)       468,875         

Benefit payments (2,895,434)     (2,702,679)    (192,755)        

Net Changes 6,003,995      700,125        5,303,870      

Balance, end of year $ 85,452,216    $ 10,505,734   $ 74,946,482    

Increase (Decrease)
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Sensitivity of the Net OPEB Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate 
The following presents the net OPEB liability, as well as what the net OPEB liability would be if it 
were calculated using a discount rate that is one percentage‐point lower or one percentage‐point 
higher than the current discount rate: 
 

1%

Decrease

(6.5%)

Current

Discount

Rate

(7.5%)

1%

Increase

(8.5%)

87,256,655$    74,946,482$    64,833,452$    
 

 
Sensitivity of the Net OPEB Liability to Changes in the Healthcare Cost Trend Rates 
The following presents the net OPEB liability, as well as what the net OPEB liability would be if it 
as calculated using healthcare cost trend rates that are one percentage‐point lower or one 
percentage‐point higher than the current healthcare cost trend rates: 
 

1%

Decrease

Current

Healthcare

Cost Trend

Rates

1%

Increase

61,743,688$    74,946,482$   91,446,892$   
 

 
OPEB Expense and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred (Inflows) of Resources Related to 
OPEB 
For the year ended June 30, 2022, the Town recognized an OPEB expense of $5,729,530. At June 30, 
2022, the Town reported deferred outflows and deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB 
from the following sources: 

Deferred Deferred

Outflows of Inflows of

Resources Resources

Difference between expected and 

actual experience $ ‐             $ 7,290,544      

Difference between projected and 

actual investments earnings 165,135    ‐                   

Change in assumptions ‐             838,046          

Total $ 165,135    $ 8,128,590      
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Amounts reported as deferred outflows and deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB will be 
recognized as a change in OPEB expense as follows: 
 

Year Ended June 30:

2023 $ (2,413,841)    

2024 (2,432,017)    

2025 (1,806,604)    

2026 (682,897)       

2027 (628,096)       

Total $ (7,963,455)    
 

21. Commitments and Contingencies 

Outstanding Legal Issues 
On an ongoing basis, there are typically pending legal issues in which the Town is involved. The 
Town’s management is of the opinion that the potential future settlement of these issues would 
not materially affect its financial statements taken as a whole. 
 
Grants  
Amounts received or receivable from grantor agencies are subject to audit and adjustment by 
grantor agencies, principally the federal government. Any disallowed claims, including amounts 
already collected, may constitute a liability of the applicable funds. The amount of expenditures 
which may be disallowed by the grantor cannot be determined at this time, although the Town 
expects such amounts, if any, to be immaterial. 
 
Encumbrances  
At year‐end the Town’s General Fund had $1,036,383 in encumbrances that will be honored in 
the next fiscal year. 

22. Subsequent Events 

Management has evaluated subsequent events through March 30, 2023, which is the date the 
financial statements were available to be issued. 
 
Debt 
Subsequent to June 30, 2022, the Town incurred the following additional debt: 
 

Interest Issue Maturity

Amount Rate Date Date

General obligation land acquisition $ 3,535,000   4.00 ‐ 5.00% 12/15/22 12/15/42
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23. New Pronouncements 

The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) has issued GASB Statement No. 94, 
Public‐Private and Public‐Public Partnerships and Availability Payment Arrangements  (P3s and 
APAs), and GASB Statement No. 96, Subscription‐Based  Information Technology Arrangements 
(SBITAs), effective for the Town beginning with its fiscal year ending June 30, 2023. These 
statements establish new reporting and disclosure requirements for P3s, APAs, and SBITAs. 
Management is currently evaluating the impact of implementing these pronouncements.  
 



 

See Independent Auditor’s Report and Notes to Required Supplementary Information. 
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Original Final Actual

Budget Budget Amounts

Revenues
Property taxes $ 88,086,726       $ 87,018,055             $ 87,109,787        $ 91,732             

Motor vehicle excise 4,355,094          4,355,094                5,281,048          925,954           

Other excise 551,964             551,964                   1,184,179          632,215           

Penalties, interest, and other taxes 325,109             325,109                   330,066             4,957               

Charges for services 2,495,740          2,495,740                3,510,196          1,014,456       

Licenses and permits 1,330,930          1,330,930                1,435,383          104,453           

Intergovernmental 32,271,998       32,271,998             32,976,714        704,716           

Fines and forfeitures 47,867               47,867                     60,673                12,806             

Investment income 69,853               69,853                     32,873                (36,980)            

Miscellaneous 600,000             600,000                   591,523             (8,477)              

Total Revenues 130,135,281     129,066,610           132,512,442     3,445,832       

Expenditures
General government 10,686,645       10,831,915             10,770,126        61,789             

Public safety 13,561,752       13,516,397             13,235,395        281,002           

Education 70,401,071       71,080,659             70,986,960        93,699             

Public works 5,426,385          5,891,138                5,658,960          232,178           

Health and human services 844,289             836,951                   774,567             62,384             

Culture and recreation 1,691,467          1,692,662                1,513,114          179,548           

Employee benefits 14,623,890       14,544,474             14,177,354        367,120           

Debt service 6,824,890          6,788,069                6,787,769          300                   

Intergovernmental 6,074,892          6,074,892                6,170,776          (95,884)            

Capital outlay ‐                      7,452,076                7,452,076          ‐                    

Total Expenditures 130,135,281     138,709,233           137,527,097     1,182,136       

‐                      (9,642,623)              (5,014,655)         4,627,968       

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Transfers in ‐                      1,214,000                1,214,000          ‐                    

Transfers out ‐                      (1,597,000)              (1,689,017)         (92,017)            
Use of free cash  ‐                      4,470,514                ‐                      (4,470,514)      
Use of prior year assigned and committed fund 

balances (encumbrances and carryforwards) ‐                      5,555,109                5,555,109          ‐                    

‐                      9,642,623                5,080,092          (4,562,531)      

$ ‐                      $ ‐                            $ 65,437                $ 65,437             Overall  Budgetary Excess (Deficiency)

Final Budget

Positive

(Negative)

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues over Expenditures

Budgeted Amounts

TOWN OF FRANKLIN, MASSACHUSETTS

General Fund

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Other Financing Sources (Uses) – Budget and Actual

(Unaudited)

Variance with

Required Supplementary Information

For the Year Ended June 30, 2022

 



 

See Independent Auditor’s Report. 
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Notes to Required Supplementary Information 
for General Fund Budget 

 
 
Budgetary Basis 
 
The General Fund final appropriation appearing on the previous page represents the final 
amended budget after all reserve fund transfers and supplemental appropriations. 
 
Budget/GAAP Reconciliation 
 
The budgetary data for the General Fund is based upon accounting principles that differ from 
GAAP. Therefore, in addition to the GAAP basis financial statements, the results of operations of 
the General Fund are presented in accordance with budgetary accounting principles to provide a 
meaningful comparison to budgetary data. 
 
The following is a summary of adjustments made to the actual revenues, expenditures, and other 
financing sources (uses), to conform to the budgetary basis of accounting. 
 

GAAP Basis $ 141,894,339    $ 139,689,105    $ (96,021)          

Add end‐of‐year appropriation

  carryforwards to expenditures ‐                   6,336,523        ‐                 

To record use of prior year assigned fund

  balance (encumbrances) ‐                   ‐                   5,555,081      

To reverse MTRS on behalf payment (9,687,057)       (9,687,057)       ‐                 

Reclassification of indirect costs ‐                   1,214,000        1,214,000      

Reverse effect of combining

  stabilization funds with General

  Fund per GASB 54 341,140           (13,548)            (1,581,070)     

Other items (35,980)            (11,926)            (11,898)          

Budgetary Basis $ 132,512,442    $ 137,527,097    $ 5,080,092      

Other

Financing

Sources (Uses)Revenues Expenditures

 
  



 

Schedule is intended to show information for 10 years. Additional years will be displayed as they become available. 
 

See notes to the Town’s financial statements for summary of significant actuarial methods and assumptions. 
 

See Independent Auditor’s Report. 
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Proportion Proportionate

of the Share of the

Fiscal Measurement Net Pension Net Pension

Year Date Liability Liability

June 30, 2022 December 31, 2021 7.812700% $28,793,166 26,747,476$      

June 30, 2021 December 31, 2020 7.709200% $39,375,092 26,086,561$      

June 30, 2020 December 31, 2019 7.697500% $45,193,052 25,204,407$      

June 30, 2019 December 31, 2018 7.467200% $48,607,021 23,791,082$      

June 30, 2018 December 31, 2017 7.454200% $41,222,050 22,986,553$      

June 30, 2017 December 31, 2016 7.611400% $39,733,230 21,380,359$      

June 30, 2016 December 31, 2015 7.611443% $41,346,324 20,361,675$      

June 30, 2015 December 31, 2014 7.756292% $40,226,086 19,038,422$      

Total Net Proportionate

Pension Share of the Plan Fiduciary

Proportion Proportionate Liability Net Pension Net Position

of the Share of the Associated Liability as a Percentage of

Fiscal Measurement Net Pension Net Pension with the Covered Percentage of the Total

Year Date Liability Liability Town  Payroll Covered Payroll Pension Liability

June 30, 2022 June 30, 2021 0.554026% ‐$               125,802,076$    125,802,076$    44,388,647$      0.00% 62.03%

June 30, 2021 June 30, 2020 0.565302% ‐$               161,364,649$    161,364,649$    42,967,009$      0.00% 50.67%

June 30, 2020 June 30, 2019 0.589260% ‐$               148,576,160$    148,576,160$    42,881,322$      0.00% 53.95%

June 30, 2019 June 30, 2018 0.575463% ‐$               136,449,789$    136,449,789$    40,413,995$      0.00% 54.84%

June 30, 2018 June 30, 2017 0.584000% ‐$               133,650,583$    133,650,583$    39,656,333$      0.00% 54.25%

June 30, 2017 June 30, 2016 0.594982% ‐$               133,025,615$    133,025,615$    39,315,863$      0.00% 52.73%

June 30, 2016 June 30, 2015 0.591007% ‐$               121,095,209$    121,095,209$    37,463,272$      0.00% 55.38%

June 30, 2015 June 30, 2014 0.584174% ‐$               92,862,306$      92,862,306$      35,818,594$      0.00% 61.64%

Norfolk County Retirement System

TOWN OF FRANKLIN, MASSACHUSETTS

Schedule of Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability

(Unaudited)

Required Supplementary Information

203.06% 58.60%

Proportionate Share of the Plan Fiduciary Net Position

Net Pension Liability as a Percentage of the Total 

179.31% 64.60%

107.65% 79.40%

Covered Payroll Percentage of Covered Payroll Pension Liability

185.84% 61.60%

179.33% 63.50%

204.31% 58.30%

150.94% 70.20%

211.29% 60.10%

with the Town

Massachusetts Teachers' Retirement System

Commonwealth of

Massachusetts' Total

Proportionate Share

of the Net Pension

Liability Associated

 



 

Schedule is intended to show information for 10 years. Additional years will be displayed as they become available. 
 

See notes to the Town’s financial statements for summary of significant actuarial methods and assumptions. 
 

See Independent Auditor’s Report. 
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Contributions in

Relation to the

Actuarially Actuarially Contribution Contributions as

Fiscal Determined Determined Deficiency Covered a Percentage of

Year Contribution Contribution (Excess) Payroll Covered Payroll

June 30, 2022 6,693,600$       6,693,600$     ‐$            26,747,476$     25.03%

June 30, 2021 6,174,365$       6,174,365$     ‐$            26,086,561$     23.67%

June 30, 2020 5,765,354$       5,765,354$     ‐$            25,204,407$     22.87%

June 30, 2019 5,223,882$       5,223,882$     ‐$            23,791,082$     21.96%

June 30, 2018 4,771,398$       4,771,398$     ‐$            22,986,553$     20.76%

June 30, 2017 4,351,658$       4,351,658$     ‐$            21,380,359$     20.35%

June 30, 2016 3,947,535$       3,947,535$     ‐$            20,361,675$     19.39%

June 30, 2015  $      3,661,686  $    3,661,686 ‐$             $     19,038,422 19.23%

Actuarially Contributions in

Determined Relation to the

Contribution Actuarially Contribution Contributions as

Fiscal Provided by Determined Deficiency Covered a Percentage of

Year Commonwealth Contribution (Excess) Payroll Covered Payroll

June 30, 2022 9,687,057$       9,687,057$     ‐$            44,388,647$     21.82%

June 30, 2021 8,781,592$       8,781,592$     ‐$            42,967,009$     20.44%

June 30, 2020 8,507,207$       8,507,207$     ‐$            42,881,322$     19.84%
June 30, 2019 7,566,095$       7,566,095$     ‐$            40,413,995$     18.72%

June 30, 2018 7,215,402$       7,215,402$     ‐$            39,656,333$     18.19%
June 30, 2017 6,691,065$       6,691,065$     ‐$            39,315,863$     17.02%

June 30, 2016 6,039,677$       6,039,677$     ‐$            37,463,272$     16.12%
June 30, 2015 5,475,922$       5,475,922$     ‐$            35,848,594$     15.28%

TOWN OF FRANKLIN, MASSACHUSETTS

Schedule of Pension Contributions

(Unaudited)

Norfolk County Retirement System

Massachusetts Teachers' Retirement System

Required Supplementary Information

 
 



 

Schedule is intended to show information for 10 years. Additional years will be displayed as they become available. 
 

See notes to the Town’s financial statements for summary of significant actuarial methods and assumptions. 
 

See Independent Auditor’s Report. 
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2022 2021 2020 2019 2018 2017

Total OPEB Liability

Service cost $ 2,834,817      $ 2,572,656      $ 2,461,872      $ 2,355,858      $ 2,749,555    $ 2,631,153    

Interest 6,064,612      6,074,067      5,659,418      5,960,335      5,560,968    5,151,437    

Differences between expected and actual experience ‐                  (6,170,129)    ‐                  (7,641,391)    ‐                 ‐                 

Changes of assumptions ‐                  ‐                  ‐                  (2,157,806)    ‐                 ‐                 

Benefit payments, including refunds of member contributions (2,895,434)    (2,835,297)    (2,576,222)    (2,692,152)    (2,495,281)   (2,387,829)   

Net change in total OPEB liabil ity 6,003,995      (358,703)        5,545,068      (4,175,156)    5,815,242    5,394,761    

Total OPEB liabil ity ‐ beginning 79,448,221   79,806,924   74,261,856   78,437,012   72,621,770  67,227,009  

Total OPEB liabil ity ‐ ending (a) 85,452,216   79,448,221   79,806,924   74,261,856   78,437,012  72,621,770  

Plan Fiduciary Net Position 

Contributions ‐ employer 3,871,679      3,491,175      3,407,236      3,346,111      3,113,747    3,219,829    

Net investment income (loss) (468,875)        2,115,284      110,265         280,311         383,452        521,740        

Benefit payments, including refunds of member contributions (2,702,679)    (2,588,101)    (2,437,236)    (2,408,121)    (2,311,621)   (2,387,829)   

Other ‐                  ‐                  ‐                  ‐                  (22,867)         ‐                 

Net change in plan fiduciary net position 700,125         3,018,358      1,080,265      1,218,301      1,162,711    1,353,740    

Plan fiduciary net position ‐ beginning 9,805,609      6,787,251      5,706,986      4,488,685      3,325,974    1,972,234    

Plan fiduciary net position ‐ ending (b) 10,505,734   9,805,609      6,787,251      5,706,986      4,488,685    3,325,974    

Net OPEB liabi lity ‐ ending (a‐b) $ 74,946,482   $ 69,642,612   $ 73,019,673   $ 68,554,870   $ 73,948,327  $ 69,295,796  

TOWN OF FRANKLIN, MASSACHUSETTS

Required Supplementary Information

Schedule of Changes in Net OPEB Liability

(Unaudited)

 
  



 

Schedule is intended to show information for 10 years. Additional years will be displayed as they become available. 
 

See notes to the Town’s financial statements for summary of significant actuarial methods and assumptions. 
 

See Independent Auditor’s Report. 
 

64 

2022 2021 2020 2019 2018 2017

Schedule of Net OPEB Liability

Total OPEB liabil ity $ 85,452,216  $ 79,448,221  $ 79,806,924  $ 74,261,856  $ 78,437,012  $ 72,621,770  

Plan fiduciary net position 10,505,734  9,805,609    6,787,251    5,706,986    4,488,685    3,325,974    

Net OPEB liability $ 74,946,482  $ 69,642,612  $ 73,019,673  $ 68,554,870  $ 73,948,327  $ 69,295,796  

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total OPEB liabil ity 12.29% 12.34% 8.50% 7.68% 5.72% 4.58%

Covered employee payroll $ 70,365,340  $ 67,985,836  $ 64,766,856  $ 63,608,230  $ 63,608,230  $ 61,457,227  

Participating employer net OPEB liability

   as a percentage of covered employee payroll 106.51% 102.44% 112.74% 107.78% 116.26% 112.75%

2022 2021 2020 2019 2018 2017

Schedule of Contributions

Actuarially determined contribution $ 9,060,165    $ 8,269,169    $ 5,724,334    $ 5,724,334    $ 5,871,382    $ 5,618,548    

Contributions in relation to the actuarially determined contribution 3,871,679    3,533,101    3,407,236    3,350,121    3,136,488    3,219,829    

Contribution deficiency $ 5,188,486    $ 4,736,068    $ 2,317,098    $ 2,374,213    $ 2,734,894    $ 2,398,719    

Covered employee payroll $ 70,365,340  $ 67,985,836  $ 64,766,856  $ 63,608,230  $ 63,608,230  $ 61,457,227  

Contributions as a percentage of covered employee payroll 5.50% 5.20% 5.26% 5.27% 4.93% 5.24%

2022 2021 2020 2019 2018 2017

Schedule of Investment Returns

Annual money weighted rate of return, net of investment expense ‐4.78% 29.91% 2.38% 12.17% 6.11% 11.93%

TOWN OF FRANKLIN, MASSACHUSETTS

Schedules of Net OPEB Liabil ity, Contributions, and Investment Returns

(Unaudited)

Required Supplementary Information

 



Franklin Town Council Meeting

May 3, 2023

Board of Commissioners

Franklin
David C. Formato, Chairman
Wolfgang Bauer, Vice Chairman
Mark Cataldo, Clerk

Medway
Douglas M. Downing
Ted Kenney

Executive Director
Elizabeth Taglieri, P.E.

Engineer/IPP Coordinator
Kristen Mucciarone, P.E.



Background

▪ CRPCD established in 1973 by the Towns of Franklin and 
Medway

▪ Wastewater treatment began in 1979, treatment capacity of 
4.54 MGD

▪ Treatment plant partially upgraded in the late 1990’s, 
increased treatment capacity to 5.7 MGD

▪ Major upgrade completed in 2012 - 2016 to replace aging 
equipment, cap on-site landfill and to meet more stringent 
total phosphorus permit limits - $30M total

▪ Currently designed and permitted to treat and discharge 5.7 
million gallons per day (mgd)
▪ Franklin owns 63.9% or 3.642 MGD



Collection System

Over 240 miles of sewer in 
Medway, Franklin, Millis and 
Bellingham
▪ 149 miles of Town owned 

sewer in Franklin
▪ 13 miles of District owned 

interceptors, including 
over 9 miles in Franklin

▪ District owned pump 
station (by BJ’s in Franklin)

Towns and District inspect 
and repair sewer lines to 
remove Infiltration and Inflow 
(I/I)



Treatment Process

▪ Screening and grit removal

▪ Primary clarification

▪ Activated sludge

▪ Secondary clarification

▪ Cloth filtration

▪ Disinfection with sodium 
hypochlorite

▪ Gravity belt thickening

▪ Off-site sludge disposal

▪ Effluent discharged to 
Charles River



Headworks



Primary Clarifier



Aeration Tanks



Secondary Clarifiers



Traveling Bridge Filter

Disk Filter 



Chlorine Contact Chambers



Final Effluent



Gravity Belt Thickener



Average Daily Flow and Projected Capacity



Look Ahead
▪ 495 Pump Station Force Main 

▪ 30 year old, 18-inch ductile iron force main pipe runs under I-495 and Mine 
Brook, Franklin owns 35.4%, evaluating inspection options

▪ Sludge Removal Costs
▪ District’s contract expires in 2027
▪ Price Increases in Market - limited disposal options, unknowns from future 

PFA regulations

▪ Chemical Costs
▪ Large increases last year, 15% to 132% increase in one year

▪ Discussion on Increase in Capacity
▪ Preliminary discussion with the Towns and MassDEP to increase sewer 

capacity due to population growth 

▪ Per- and Polyfluoroalkyl Substances (PFAS)
▪ New NPDES permit will include quarterly testing at plant and industries

▪ Electrical Supply Rate
▪ 3rd Party supply rate contract expires in 2025



SEWER WORKS
FRANKLIN PUBLIC WORKS



Beaver street interceptor



Sewer  Issues 

▪ High I & I Improvement Program

▪ $500K in 2022

▪ $500K in 2023

▪ $200K Study for future improvements

▪ 23 Lift Stations

▪ $250K Grant!



Looking Ahead

▪ Limited Projected Surplus going forward

▪ Funding Lift Station Master Plan

▪ Funding Future I & I Programs

▪ Increased Costs from CRPCD



Questions?

Come Tour the Facility or Franklin Public Works!

Charles River Pollution Control District
www.charlesriverpcd.org

508-533-6762 

Elizabeth Taglieri, P.E.

Executive Director

ltaglieri@charlesriverpcd.org

Brutus Cantoreggi.

Public Works Director

rcantoreggi@franklinma.gov



Memorandum

April 28, 2023

To: Town Council
From: Jamie Hellen, Town Administrator

Re: Introduction to PFAS in Franklin

The purpose of this discussion tonight is to alert the Council and public to the latest environmental cause
that will have a significant impact on water rates over the next decade. DPW Director Cantreggi and
Water-Sewer Superintendent Doug Martin will give an overview of what to expect in the coming years.

Background/History

Per- and Polyfluorinated Substances (PFAS) are a family of chemicals used for nonstick, stain-resistant

and water-proof coatings, and in numerous consumer products, industrial uses, and firefighting foams.

PFAS are resilient and do not degrade easily. As a result, they are widely found in the environment as

products are disposed of and PFAS leaches into the soil and water, finding its way to food and drinking

water sources.

People are exposed to PFAS from many sources, far beyond their drinking water. According to the U.S.

Environmental Protection Agency (EPA), people are exposed to PFAS by food packaged in materials

containing PFAS, processed with equipment that used PFAS, or grown in PFAS-contaminated soil or

water. People may also have been exposed to PFAS in the workplace through production facilities or

industries that involve chrome plating, electronics manufacturing, and oil recovery. In addition, many

commercial household products contain PFAS, and if made outside the United States, may still be made

with PFAS. Those include stain- and water-repellent fabrics, nonstick cookware and other products,

polishes, waxes, paints, and cleaning products, to name a few. When found in drinking water, it is often

the result of PFAS discharged from a nearby manufacturer, landfill, wastewater treatment plant, or

firefighter training facility that used fire-suppressing foams.

The Massachusetts Department of Environmental Protection (MassDEP) and the Centers for Disease

Control and Prevention (CDC) both note more research is needed and ongoing, but that consuming



water with high PFAS levels does not mean adverse effects will occur. As we await further scientific

study, MassDEP has a drinking water standard for the sum of six PFAS compounds called PFAS6. This

standard requires all Massachusetts public water suppliers to regularly test for PFAS. The sum of PFAS6

may not exceed 20 nanograms per liter (ng/L), equal to 20 parts per trillion (ppt). For perspective, one

ppt is equivalent to a single drop of water in 20 Olympic sized swimming pools which is approximately 13

million gallons of water.

Since October 2020, when the MassDEP PFAS6 drinking water standard went into place, Franklin has

been sampling all our sources as required. All sampling has been consistently and reliably below 20 ppt

for the PFAS6 except for Well 7/7A. In January of 2020, Well 7/7A had four of the six regulated PFAS

being detected in finished water, with a sum of 31.4 ppt. This forced the Town to shut down the source

and it has been off ever since. All other sources have consistently and reliably been below the MassDEP

PFAS6 drinking water standard.

You may have heard in the news that the EPA recently issued a draft federal drinking water rule which

sets the limit for certain PFAS (PFOA, PFOS, and others) lower than the Massachusetts standard. EPA is

entertaining public comment on their proposal now and if the proposed rule is finalized, Massachusetts

will adopt limits at least as stringent as EPA; the EPA process may take another year before it is

completed.

Therefore, given the current MassDEP regulations we are proposing a $6.5 million project to construct a

new PFAS treatment facility adjacent to the current building at the Well No. 7/7A site. In addition to

Well 7/7A if the proposed more stringent EPA rule goes into effect based on current sampling results we

will need to provide PFAS treatment at the following locations to be in compliance with the proposed

rule

● Well 5

● Well 4

● Well 8/8A

● Well 9

The cost for treatment at all these locations including Well 7/7A is likely to be around $50 million

dollars. This does not include our other 4 well locations that are currently just under the proposed rule

limits set for PFOA and PFOS.

At the May 25th Town Council meeting we will be asking the council to appropriate the borrowing of the

$6.5 Million for the Well 7/7A project. The Town was listed on the 2023 final State Revolving Fund (SRF)

intended use plan and since this project will be a PFAS treatment facility it will be eligible for an

interest-free (0%) loan with additional principal loan forgiveness through the SRF program in thanks to

the 2021 Bipartisan Infrastructure Law (BIL).



In addition to the above pending costs associated with PFAS, the Water Department has identified the

following projects in order to continue delivering the required quantity of safe and reliable drinking

water to our consumers.

● Fisher Street WTP - Replace the existing Fisher Street WTP membrane cartridge system before

the estimated end of cartridge life (~2025) which could lead to WTP failure/loss of services.

Estimated cost ~ $12 Million

● Water Main Replacement / Road Improvement Program - The current $7.5 million 5 year

program is being completed in 2024 and to continue another 5 year program will cost $10

million. Estimated cost ~ $10 Million

● Hillside Tank Replacement - Project to eliminate concerns about the condition of these two

aging tanks and to maintain reliable service in the future by replacing the approximately

100-year old steel water storage tanks with one new tank. Estimated cost ~ $9.5 Million

● Pleasant Street Tank & Low Service Area Reconfiguration - Reconfigure the existing low service

area (Pleasant Street) system to eliminate the “in series” pumping and perform needed tank

rehabilitation. Estimated cost ~ $5.5 Million

● Bald Hill and Forge Hill Tank Maintenance - Rehabilitation of Bald Hill Tank and Forge Hill Tank,

including the interior overflow pipe assembly and shell manhole surfaces which are displaying

extensive corrosion. Estimated cost ~ $3 Million

The cost of these projects are projected to be over 40 million dollars and are vital for the Town to

continue to comply with safe drinking water standards. In order to fund all the PFAS and non PFAS

projects the water rates will need to be increased over the next decade to maintain the town water

supply infrastructure.

If you have any additional questions please feel free to ask.



Memorandum

April 28, 2023

To: Town Council
From: Jamie Hellen, Town Administrator

Re: Bylaw Amendment 23-897: Sewer Rate Increase

The following bylaw amendment is the first reading on a sewer rate increase to pay for the Beaver Street
Interceptor. Bids are now in and came under budget at $28 million. As you recall, the Town is a Housing
Choice community and the interest rate is 1.5%, which will save the Town a lot of money.

The attached bylaw has the new rates, which will be required by our contract with the state to receive
the low interest loan for the project. Rates will increase 19% on July 1, 2023, 15% on July 1, 2024 and
10% on July 1, 2025.

If the town does not approve these rates, we will be in contractual default with the Commonwealth on
this loan. The Interceptor has lasted 109-years. There are no other options.

Website is here: https://www.franklinma.gov/water-sewer-division/pages/beaver-street-interceptor



Sponsor: Administration

TOWN OF FRANKLIN

BY-LAW AMENDMENT 23 –897

SEWER USAGE RATES

BE IT ENACTED BY THE FRANKLIN TOWN COUNCIL THAT: Chapter 82 of the Code of the Town of

Franklin, entitled “Fees, Municipal Service” is hereby amended at Appendix A, as follows:

Appendix A

List of Sewer Service Usage Rates

Effective for bills issued on or after July 1, 2023 Sewer Usage rates shall be as follows:

CCF Sewer Usage Sewer Usage Sewer Usage Sewer Usage

 
Rate

7-1-2022
Rate

7-1-2023
Rate

7-1-2024
Rate

7-1-2025
0-15 $6.05 7.22 8.31 9.42
16-40 $6.45 7.69 8.85 10.03
41+ $7.40 8.83 10.17 11.52
Quarterly Sewer
Only $183.00 218.00 260.00 310.00

This By-Law amendment shall become effective according to the provisions of the Franklin
Home Rule Charter.

DATED: _________________, 2023 VOTED:

UNANIMOUS: _________________

A True Record Attest: YES: __________ NO: ___________

ABSTAIN: _____________________

ABSENT: ______________________

Nancy Danello, CMC
Town Clerk _______________________________

Glenn Jones, Clerk
Franklin Town Council



Memorandum

April 28, 2023

To: Town Council
From: Jamie Hellen, Town Administrator

Re: Resolution 23-30: Authorizing the Borrowing of Money to Pay Costs Associated with the
Franklin Sewer System Asset Management Plan and Authorizing the Town Administrator to File
Clean Water State Revolving Fund Loan Application and to Take Other Action as Needed

The Town has been awarded grant funding under the 2023 Massachusetts Department of Environmental

Protection (MassDEP) Clean Water State Revolving Fund (CWSRF) to continue our Asset Management

efforts in wastewater. Our goals for this project include:

● Evaluate sewer pipeline criticality and performance;

● Improve the current pump station asset registry including verifying information, expanding the

registry to include previously undocumented assets, and expanding the depth of information

and attributes assigned to assets;

● Perform a condition and risk assessment of the pump station assets;

● Develop a capital improvement plan for sewer pump station assets to ensure that proper

investments are made to repair or replace these assets.

As a result of this project, we will be able to better understand the criticality of sewer pipelines and its

current capacity performance. The Town will also improve the accuracy and completeness of existing

sewer pump station data and be able to prioritize its sewer pump station assets based on asset condition

and consequence of failure and improve its ability to make data-driven capital planning decisions

regarding how to best allocate limited funds for asset rehabilitation and replacement (R&R).

The proposed project cost is $250,000 broken down as follows:

● Grant Received $150,000

● Cash (fiscal contribution) $95,000

● In-Kind Services $5,000



The Town’s contribution to the project will be through fiscal contribution and in-kind labor. Fiscal

contributions will be used to cover costs associated with engineering services and will be paid out of the

operating fund. In kind labor will be through participation in meetings, and field investigations.

As with other SRF related projects, the funding must be appropriated through borrowing. We are asking

the Council to approve Resolution 23-30, to authorize the appropriation of $250,000 for this project.

Additionally, this resolution will authorize the Town Administrator to act as the authorized representative

of the Town in connection with this application.

If you have any additional questions please feel free to ask.
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TOWN OF FRANKLIN 

 

RESOLUTION 23-30 

 

Authorizing the Borrowing of Money to Pay Costs 

Associated with the Franklin Sewer System Asset 

Management Plan (CWSRF 12541) 
 

 

 

Whereas: The Town Council has been advised of a need to create a Franklin Sewer System 

Asset Management Plan, 

 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT ORDERED by the Town Council of the Town of Franklin that:   

 (1) Two Hundred and Fifty Thousand Dollars ($250,000) is appropriated to pay costs 

associated with the creation of the Franklin Sewer System Asset Management Plan 

(hereinafter: “Project”), and that to meet this appropriation, the Treasurer, with the 

approval of the Town Administrator, is authorized to borrow this amount under and 

pursuant to G.L. c. 44, §7(7) or any other enabling authority, and to issue bonds or 

notes of the Town therefor.  The amount authorized to be borrowed pursuant to this 

resolution shall be reduced to the extent of any grants, gifts or other contributions 

(including in-kind contributions) received by the Town on account of the Project. 

 (2) All or any portion of the amount authorized to be borrowed by this resolution may 

be borrowed through the Massachusetts Clean Water Trust (the “Trust”) established 

pursuant to G.L. c. 29C; the purpose of said loan(s), if awarded, shall be to fund 

costs of the Project, and if said award is made, Town agrees to pay those costs 

which constitute the required applicant’s share of the Project cost. The Town 

Administrator, the Town Treasurer and any other appropriate officials of the Town 

is/are hereby authorized on behalf of Town to file applications and execute 

agreements for grant and/or loan assistance as well as to furnish such information, 

data and documents pertaining to Town’s application for a grant(s) and/or loan(s), 

and to take any and all other action as may be required, including to execute and 

deliver any agreements with the Trust and/or the Department of Environmental 

Protection of The Commonwealth of Massachusetts that may be necessary in order 

to obtain any such financing, and otherwise to act as the authorized representative 

of the Town in connection with this application.   

(3) This Resolution shall become effective according to the provisions of the Town of 

Franklin Home Rule Charter.  
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DATED: ____________ , 2023    VOTED: __________________________ 
 

        UNANIMOUS: _______________ 
 

A TRUE RECORD ATTEST:     YES: _________ NO: __________ 
 

        ABSTAIN:_____ ABSENT: _____ 
 

RECUSED: _______________ 

 

__________________________ 

Nancy Danello, CMC      _____________________________ 

Town Clerk         Glenn Jones, Clerk 

         Franklin Town Council 

 

 

 



TOWN OF FRANKLIN
RESOLUTION 23-31

AUTHORITY FOR TOWN ADMINISTRATOR TO FILE
CLEAN WATER STATE REVOLVING FUND LOAN APPLICATION

Whereas, the Town of Franklin (hereinafter: “Town”), after thorough investigation, has determined that the work
activity consisting of: Franklin Sewer System Asset Management Plan (CWSRF 12541) (hereinafter: “Project”)
is both in the public interest and necessary to protect the public health, and that to undertake this activity, it is
necessary to apply for assistance; and

Whereas, the Massachusetts Department of Environmental Protection (MassDEP) and the Massachusetts
Clean Water Trust (the Trust) of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts, pursuant to Chapter 21 and Chapter
29C of the General Laws of the Commonwealth (Chapter 21 and Chapter 29C) are authorized to make loans
to municipalities for the purpose of funding planning and construction activities relative to Water Pollution
Abatement Projects; and

Whereas, Town has examined the provisions of the Act, Chapter 21 and Chapter 29C, and believes it to be in
the public interest to file a loan application; and

Whereas, Town, acting by and through the Franklin Town Council, by Resolution 23-30, has authorized
borrowing for the Project of Two Hundred and Fifty Thousand Dollars,

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Franklin Town Council, acting on behalf of the Town of
Franklin, as follows:

1. That the Town Administrator is hereby authorized on behalf of Town to file applications and execute
agreements for grant and/or loan assistance as well as furnish such information, data and documents
pertaining to Town’s application for a grant(s) and/or loan(s) as may be required; and otherwise to act
as the authorized representative of the Town in connection with this application;

2. That the purpose of said loan(s), if awarded, shall be to fund construction activities in connection with
Franklin Sewer System Asset Management Plan (CWSRF 12541)

3. If said award is made, the Town agrees to pay those costs which constitute the required applicant’s
share of the project cost.

This resolution shall become effective according to the provisions of the Town of Franklin Home Rule Charter.

DATED: ____________ , 2023 VOTED: __________________________

UNANIMOUS: _______________

A TRUE RECORD ATTEST: YES: _________ NO: __________

ABSTAIN:_____ ABSENT: _____

RECUSED: __________________

__________________________
Nancy Danello, CMC _____________________________
Town Clerk Glenn Jones, Clerk

Franklin Town Council



Memorandum
April 7, 2023

To: Town Council
From: Jamie Hellen, Town Administrator

Re: Bylaw Amendment 23-889: A Zoning Bylaw to Amend the Franklin Town Code at Chapter 185,
Attachment 7., Part VI, Use Regulation Schedule: Residential Uses
Bylaw Amendment 23-890: A Zoning Bylaw to Amend the Franklin Town Code at Chapter 185, Section 51

_________________________________________________________________________________

The following two bylaw proposals represent the Inclusionary Zoning package approved unanimously, 7-0, by
the EDC+ Steering Committee, as well as a unanimous recommendation, 5-0, by the Franklin Planning Board.
After months of deliberation, this package represents a policy that has widespread support and an incredible
compromise!

Before the Council tonight is the public hearings on both legislation, as well as first reading of the bylaw
proposal.

Please see the attached materials from Bryan Taberner on the substance of the bylaws.
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F R A N K L I N  P L A N N I N G  &  C O M M U N I T Y  D E V E L O P M E N T  
355 EAST CENTRAL STREET, ROOM 120 

FRANKLIN, MA  02038-1352 
TELEPHONE: 508-520-4907 

 
 

 

MEMORANDUM 
 

 
TO:  JAMIE HELLEN, TOWN ADMINISTRATOR 

FROM:  BRYAN W. TABERNER, AICP, DIRECTOR  

RE:  PROPOSED ZONING CHANGES 
     ZONING BYLAW AMENDMENT 23-889, RESIDENTIAL USES  (FORMERLY 22-889) 

   ZONING BYLAW AMENDMENT 23-890, INCLUSIONARY ZONING  (FORMERLY 22-890) 

DATE:  FEBRUARY 9, 2023 
 

The Department of Planning & Community Development (DPCD) has worked during the last several months 
to develop Zoning Bylaw amendments recommended in the “Franklin For All” zoning project, and the 
Town’s 2022 Housing Production Plan (HPP). Recent work, including the two subject Zoning Bylaw 
Amendments, address the following 1.) Housing density allowed within Commercial I (CI), and General 
Residential V (GRV) zoning districts; 2.) By-right multifamily housing; 3.) MBTA Communities requirements 
outlined in Section 3A of the Zoning Act, and 4.) Inclusionary Zoning.  

The proposed changes below will create a baseline which to address additional zoning changes, including 
the possibility of adopting a 40R Smart Growth Overlay District, and addressing accessory dwelling units. 

By-Right Multifamily Housing and related Housing Density. Currently multifamily housing developments are 
only allowed by-right in the Downtown Commercial zoning district (up to one dwelling unit per 2,000 
square feet of lot area). In the Commercial I (CI) and General Residential V (GRV) zoning districts up to one 
dwelling unit per 1,000 square feet of lot area (44 housing units per acre) may be permitted by Planning 
Board special permit. Special Permits for dense multifamily housing are not automatically granted, and it 
can be difficult to obtain a permit to develop as many as 44 housing units on an acre of land. The permitting 
process can be very expensive for the property owner and developer, and there is no guarantee the permit 
will be granted. 

MBTA Communities Requirements. Massachusetts passed new laws through the Acts of 2020 adding a new 
Section 3A to chapter 40A of MGL. Under Section 3A communities with commuter rail stations (or other 
MBTA service) are required to have at least one zoning district “of reasonable size in which multi-family 
housing is permitted as of right” that will “have a minimum gross density of 15 units per acre”.    

Regulation implementing the new laws is contained in “Compliance Guidelines for Multi-family Zoning 
Districts” (https://www.mass.gov/info-details/multi-family-zoning-requirement-for-mbta-communities). 
The size and location of the zoning district required by Section 3A is dependent upon several factors.   

Below is a table outlining the Town of Franklin’s Section 3A requirements taken from the Compliance 
Guidelines. To summarize the Town of Franklin's MBTA Communities multifamily zoning requirements, the 
Town is required to amend its Zoning Bylaw to assure it has one or more zoning districts that in total would 
allow a minimum multi-family unit capacity of 1,883 housing units by-right, seventy-five percent of which 
must be located not more than 0.5 miles of the MBTA station.  
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Section 3A MBTA Communities Requirements 

Community: Franklin     Community Category: Commuter Rail 

Minimum multi-family 
unit capacity1 

Minimum land 
area of District 

Percent of district to be 
located in station area2 

1,883 Units 50 acres At least 75 percent 

1.) Minimum multi-family unit capacity equals 15 percent of the number 
of housing units in Franklin at time of the 2020 U.S. Census. 

2. The Station area is a half-mile circle around the MBTA commuter rail 
station. 

The majority of CI and GRV zoning districts are within a half mile of the Downtown MBTA station. DPCD 
recommends amending the Zoning Bylaw’s use regulations to change the housing density allowed in the CI 
and GRV zoning districts, and to allow a certain number of housing units by-right. By allowing multifamily 
housing by right in the CI and GRV zoning districts, a developer knows it is possible to get a permit for a 
certain size development. If the developer wants a denser development they should be allowed to seek a 
Planning Board special permit.  

During a series of Economic Development Committee+ meetings in the fall and early winter, the 
participants debated the level of housing density that should be allowed within the CI and GRV zoning 
districts. The Committee voted to set the density to one dwelling unit per 2,250 square feet of lot area.  

The proposed density of one dwelling unit per 2,250 square feet of lot area will help the Town meet the 
MBTA Communities requirements stated in Section 3A; 1 unit per 2,250 sf of lot area comes to 19.36 units 
per acre. With the Town’s Downtown Commercial zoning district already allowing up to 1 housing unit per 
2,000 sf of lot (21.78 housing units per acre) by-right, having CI and GRV allow 19.36 units per acre by-right 
should sufficiently address the Section 3A requirements.  

Please note, DPCD staff are currently working with the Town’s GIS Department and planners from the 
Metropolitan Area Planning Council (MAPC) to assess whether or not the proposed changes above 
would actually meet the Section 3A requirements. 

One small Zoning Bylaw amendment that would make a few minor changes to Part VI of the Use 
Regulations tables (Attachment 7 of the Zoning Bylaw) will make the proposed changes above possible. 
However, the above proposed changes do not deal with affordable housing issues.  

Inclusionary Zoning. DPCD has worked on developing an Inclusionary Zoning (IZ) Bylaw for several years; 
during that time much has happened, including the HPP, the “Franklin For All” study, and by-right 
multifamily requirements for MBTA Communities. Over the last couple months the State has amended the 
requirements of MBTA Communities regarding affordable housing; one change is as follows: DHCD “will 
consider an affordability requirement to be consistent with as of right zoning as long as the zoning requires 
not more than 10 percent of the units in a project to be affordable units”.  

For that reason, requiring more than ten percent affordable housing units in the Downtown Commercial, 
Commercial I, and General Residential V zoning districts is not allowed (unless the units are more than half 
mile from the MBTA Station). The newest DHCD guidance also states to be consistent with as of right zoning 
“the cap on the income of families or individuals who are eligible to occupy the affordable units is not less 
than 80 percent of the area median income”. These changes required DPCD to update the Inclusionary 
Zoning (IZ) Bylaw. The updated version is simplified in that it only requires 10% affordable units for all 
multifamily housing developments of ten (10) or more units. 
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Proposed Zoning Bylaw Amendments. Attached are two proposed zoning bylaw amendments related to the 
issues discussed above.  

Zoning Bylaw Amendment 23-889, Multifamily Housing Density. The proposed bylaw makes several small 
changes to Part VI of the Use Regulations tables. Most importantly it allows multifamily housing in the CI 
and GRV zoning districts by-right, up to 1 unit per 2,250 SF of lot area. And it allows the developer to apply 
for additional density by special permit. The following wording is included in the Use Regulations table 
related to multifamily housing of 4 or more units in CI and GRV:  

No more than one dwelling unit per 2,250 square feet of lot area may be permitted; additional dwelling 
units may be allowed by Special Permit from the Planning Board. 

Another important change was replacing one row in the Residential Use Regulations table with two rows, 
which define two types of multifamily housing: 

6.1    Multifamily or Apartment 
   a.  With Four or More Housing Units 
   b.  With Three Housing Units.  

Splitting the use into two allows a 3 unit development to be allowed in certain districts where other larger 
multifamily developments are not.  

Zoning Bylaw Amendment 23-890, Inclusionary Zoning. The Zoning Bylaw amendment adds a new section 
to the Town’s Zoning Bylaw: §185-51 Inclusionary Zoning.  Multifamily developments with 10 or more 
housing units will be required to have at least ten percent of the housing units available for rent (or 
purchase) by eligible individuals or households making less than 80% of the area wide median household 
income.  

I request the Town Council vote to refer the Zoning Amendments to the Planning Board for a Public 
Hearing. Please let me know if you have questions or require additional information on any of the above 
issues.  
 

























Memorandum

April 28, 2023

To: Town Council
From: Jamie Hellen, Town Administrator

Re: Resolution 23-32: Gift Acceptance - Town of Franklin for Red Brick School House (Donation of
“Established” Sign)

The Town of Franklin has received another exceptionally generous donation from Cam Afonso, Owner of Signs By
Cam.

Cam has been incredibly generous in donating many signs to the Town and the Schools over the years. With this
recent donation, he has redone the “Established” Red Brick School House sign as part of the renovation project.

We can’t thank Cam enough for sharing his great talent and providing such consistent and tremendous support
to the Franklin Community. Many times, Cam feels like an extension of our staff and we are greatly appreciative!



TOWN OF FRANKLIN
RESOLUTION 23-32

Acceptance of Gift - Town of Franklin for Red Brick School
House (Donation of “Established” Sign)

WHEREAS, The Town of Franklin has received a generous gift of a carved PVC sign to be installed at
the Red Brick School House;

Donation Summary:

TOWN OF FRANKLIN

● 1 carved PVC Sign to be installed at the Red Brick School House located at 2 Lincoln St., Franklin

The sign was donated by Cam Afonso, Owner of Signs by Cam, Inc.

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT:

The Town Council of the Town of Franklin gratefully accepts this generous donation of 1 carved PVC Sign to be
installed at the Red Brick School House.

This resolution shall become effective according to the provisions of the Town of Franklin Home Rule Charter.

DATED: ____________ , 2023 VOTED: __________________________

UNANIMOUS: _______________

A TRUE RECORD ATTEST: YES: _________ NO: __________

ABSTAIN:_____ ABSENT: _____

RECUSED: __________________

__________________________
Nancy Danello, CMC _____________________________
Town Clerk Glenn Jones, Clerk

Franklin Town Council



Memorandum

April 28, 2023

To: Town Council
From: Jamie Hellen, Town Administrator

Re: Resolution 23-29: Capital FY23 - Round 2

I am asking the Town Council to approve the FY23 Round 2 Capital Plan requests. The Capital Budget

Subcommittee voted unanimously at their April 26th meeting to recommend approval of the following.

Department of Public Works - $581,782

● Design, maintenance and construction of public roads, sidewalks & parking lots

School Department - $77,000

● SPED Van

Town Administration - $50,000

● “Marketing & Branding” to match the $50,000 grant secured for the Town by Representative Jeff Roy

Town Clerk - $3,000

● Fleece vests and identification gear for Election Workers and Double-Sided Magnetic Sign Displays

TOTAL: $711,782

Materials from the April 26th Capital Budget Subcommittee Meeting and some backup quotes are included in

the packet. If you have any additional questions please feel free to ask.



Memorandum

April 21, 2023

To: Capital Budget Subcommittee
From: Jamie Hellen, Town Administrator

Re: FY23 Capital Round 2

The following proposal is for the post-snow and ice season capital round 2. As the committee
can see, we are proposing mostly to put the funds into roads, infrastructure, sidewalks and town
parking lot maintenance like the town has traditionally done with excess snow and ice.

Design, maintenance and construction of public
roads, sidewalks & parking lots

DPW $581,782

“Marketing & Branding” to match the $50,000 grant
Representative Jeff Roy secured for the town

Town Administration $50,000

SPED van School Department $77,000

Fleece vests and identification gear for Election
Wardens

Town Clerk $3,000

Total: $711,782

The Finance Committee and Town Administration were unable to hold a meeting in April and
thus there is no formal recommendation. A reminder the Town Charter does nor require their
recommendation, however rare it is we miss this opportunity.

If approved this evening, these funds would be placed for full approval at the May 3rd Town
Council meeting.

Please let us know if you have any questions.







TOWN OF FRANKLIN

RESOLUTION NO.: 23 - 29

APPROPRIATION: Capital FY23 – Round 2
TOTAL REQUESTED: $711,782
PURPOSE: To appropriate funds for the 2023 Capital Improvement Plan Round 2
SOURCE: Free Cash

Design, maintenance and construction of public roads, sidewalks &
parking lots

DPW $581,782

Marketing & Branding Administration $50,000

SPED van School Department $77,000

Fleece vests and identification gear for Election Wardens and
Double-Sided Magnetic Sign Displays

Town Clerk $3,000

Total: $711,782

MOTION

Be It Moved and Voted by the Town Council that the sum of Seven Hundred and Eleven Thousand, Seven
Hundred Eighty Two Dollars ($711,782) be appropriated from Free Cash, to be expended at the discretion of the
Town Administrator for the FY 2023 Capital Improvement Plan Round 2 as outlined above including any residual
funds remaining in these line items.

This Resolution shall become effective according to the provisions of the Town of Franklin Home Rule Charter.
____________________________________________________________________________________

DATED: _________________, 2023
VOTED:

UNANIMOUS _________

YES ______ NO _______

A True Record Attest: ABSTAIN _____________

ABSENT ______________

Nancy Danello, CMC
Town Clerk

_______________________________
Glenn Jones, Chair
Franklin Town Council
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